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STRATEGY

Investment Objective and Performance

The investment objective of the Company is to achieve long term
capital growth from an actively managed portfolio of securities
primarily of small and medium sized Japanese companies listed
or traded on Japanese stockmarkets.

Detail of the Company’s investment policy is on page 11

Performance (year ended 31 December 2015}

Net Asset Value {“NAV”) per Ordinary Share Total Return - undiluted +24.6%
Ordinary Share Price Total Return +20.5%
Russell Nomura Mid/Small Cap Index Total Return (in sterling terms)* +19.4%

* The Company’s Reference Index

As at 31 December 2015
Equity Shareholders’ Funds £116.0m

Market Capitalisation £99.8m

Capital Structure:
Ordinary shares of 25 pence each 11 4,2 1 8,356

Subscription shares of 0.001 pence each 22,52 7,339

Standardised Performance - Total Return {*)

g1/01/2015 01/01/2014  01/01/2013  01/01/2012  01/01/2011
to to to to to
31/12/2015  31/12/2014  31/12/2013 3171272012 317127201

NAY per ordinary share - undiluted +24 6 +31 +318 b6 42
Crdinary share price +205 00 +395 17 83
Russell Nomura Mid/Small Cap Index (in sterling ferms) +194 +51 1217 31 93

Sources Fidelity and Datostraom
Post performonce is not o guide 10 future retums
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Financial Summary

2015 2014

Assets at 31 December

Total portfelic exposure’ £1353m £113 5m
Shareholders’ funds £116 0m £929m
Total portfolio exposure in excess of shareholders’ funds (Geanng - see page 17) 16 6% 22 2%
NAV per ordinary share - undiluted 101 56p 8148p
NAV per ordinary share - diluted’ 99 08p n/a

Stockmarket data at 31 December

Russell Nomura Mid/Small Cap Index (in sterling terms) 27042 22654
Yen/t exchange rate 177303 186 946
Crdinary share price at the year end 86 75p 7200p
year high 88 00p 75 75p
year {ow 7100p 64 75p
Discount - undiuted at the year end 14 &% 11 6%
year high 17 7% 17 8%
year low 657% 28%
Subscription share price at the year end 313p 4 25p
year high 725p 4 25p
year low 150p 375

Total returns for the year to 31 December

NAV per ordinary share - undiluted +24 6% +3 1%
Crdinary share price +20 5% +0 0%
Russell Nomura Mid/Small Cap Index (in sterling terms) +19 4% +5 1%

Results for the year to 31 December - see page 39

Revenue loss per ordinary share (0 14p) (0 45p)
Capital return per ordinary share 20 24p 291p
Total return per ordinary share 2010p 2 46p
Ongoing charges for the year to 31 December? 152% 162%

1
2

The total exposure of the Investment portfolio, including exposure to the investments undarlying the long CFDs

There was no diluted net asset value per ordinary share at 31 December 2014 as the net asset value per ordinary share was below the 84 50 pence exercise price
ol a subscnption share

Cngoing charges {excluding finance costs and taxation) as a percentege of avercge net asset values for the reporting year {prepared in accordance with
methadology recommended by the Association of Investment Companies)
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Dawvid Robins
Chairman

| hove pleasure in presenting the Annual Report of Fidelty
Japanese Values PLC for the year ended 31 December 2015

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Despite the major setback suffered by the Japanese market in
the second half of 2015, ansing from concerns over the slowdown
in China and the likelilhood of a nse in US interest rates, | am
pleased to be able to report that over the year to 31 December
2015, the Company’s net asset value rose by 24 6% to 101 56p
per share, substantially beating the Russell Nomura Mid/Small
Cap Index, which rose by 19 4% n sterling terms The share
price also went up, but only by 20 5% per share to 85 75p, as
the Company’s share discount fo NAV widened to 14 &% This
was in line with a widening of discounts for Asian investment
trusts and emerging market funds generally

Chairman’s Statement

PORTFOLIO MANAGER

At the end of July 2015 we announced that the Company’s
Portfolic Manager would change from Shinyi Higaki to Nicholas
Price, effective from 1 September 2015 The Board took this
decision as 1t felt that the long term performance of the
Company versus its peer group had not been satisfactory
despite the Company's cutperformance of the Reference Index
We are grateful for Shinji’'s eight years of service 1o the Company
and the undoubted hard work that he put into the management
of the Company’s portfolio The Board also wishes him well in his
new role as Finance Directer of a small Japanese company

In his successor, Nicholas Price, we believe we have managed to
find o Portfoho Manager who will be a great fit for the Company
Nicholas i1s @ highly expenenced Japanese equiies manager
and has an excellent track record on the funds he has run to
date He 1s a “growth at a reasonable pnce” manager with o
natural bias towards mid and small cap companies

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The revenue column of the Income Statement on page 39 shows
a net loss on ordinary activities after taxation for the year of
£160,000 (2014 £509,000) As the revenue reserve remamned
substantially in dehicit at 31 December 2015, the Directors do not
recommend the payment of a dividend However, os Japanese
compames are beginning to raise their dividend pay-out ratios
generally, this 1s an 1ssue which the Board will continye to monitor
closely

GEARING

The Company 1s permitted to gear through the use of long
Contracts for Difference (“CFDs") Total portfolio exposure at
the end of the year was £135 3m, eqguating lo gearing of 16 6%
compared with 22 2% at the end of 2014 Further information
can be found on pages 11 and 12 of the Strategic Report

With the change of Portfolio Manager, the Board concluded
that a rewision to the Company’s gearing guidelines would be
appropnote Whilst the previous Mianager tended to remain
farly fully geared on the Board's instruction, Nicholas Price has
agreed with the Board that he 1s likely to want 1o use gearing
more dynamically The Board has therefore given him discretion
to move between being 25% geared to holding 5% net cash

The Board continves to be of the view that using CFDs provides
more flexibility for the Company’s needs at a much lower cost
than traditional bank debt, despite the low level of mterest rates
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STRATEGY

Chairman’s Statement

MANAGEMENT FEE ARRANGEMENTS AND ONGOING
CHARGES

Shareholders may recall that the management fee was reduced
on 1 January 2014 from 100% to 0 85% of gross assets As a
result ongoing charges were 162% During 2015, Fidelity, on
behalf of the Board, negotiated a reduction in fees paid to third
party providers These efforts resulted in a further decline in the
Company's ongoing charges to 152% in 2015 This places the
Company below the average of the peer group (at 165%), but
the Board will continue to monitor costs very closely and will
keep the management fee under review

THE BOARD

Following the recruitment of two new Board Directors in 2014, the
Board has operated with six members since last year's Annual
General Meeting ("“AGM") At the conclusion of this year's AGM,
Dawvid Miller will be stepping down fram the Board, bringing the
number back down to five | would like to take this opportunity to
thank him on behalf of the Board and shareholders for his
invaluable contnbution over the last eleven years, and for his
support as Senior Independent Director Philip Kay has kindly
agreed to take over from David Miller as the Company’s Senior
Independent Director following the AGM

SUBSCRIPTION SHARES

On 26 August 2014, the Company underiook a bonus 1ssue of
subscrniption shares to ordinary shareholders on the basis of

one subscnption share for every five ordinary shares held The
subscnption shares were allotted to qualifying ordinary shareholders
at no cost The exercise price was set at 86 50 pence

The nghts attaching to a total of 215,981 subscription shares were
exercised in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015, at
which point the total number of subscnption shares in 1ssue was
22,527,339 The final date for exercising the nghts to subscription
shares will be 29 Apnl 2016 As at 29 March 2016, the diluted net
asset value per ordinary share {including income) was 103 24p
Further details of the subscnption shares may be found in the
Directors’ Report on page 24 and in Note 13 on page 48

SHARE REPURCHASES

Purchases of ordinary and subscnption shares for cancellation
are made at the discretion of the Company and within guidelines
set from time to tme by the Board Share repurchases are made
in the light of prevailing market conditions, together with ther
impact on hquidity and geanng Shares will only be repurchased
when the result s an enhancement to the net asset value of the
ordinary shares tor the remaining shareholders No shares were
repurchased dunng the year (2014 ml) for cancellotion Since

1 January 2016 and as at the date of this report, the Company
has repurchased [420,000] ordinary shares

TREASURY SHARES

In order to assist In managing the discount, the Board has
decded to seek shareholder approval to hold in Treasury any
ordinary shares repurchased by the Company, rather than
cancelling them The Treasury shares would carry no voting
rights or nghts to recerve a dividend and would have no
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entittement in a winding up of the Company No more than 5%
of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company would be
held in Treasury Any shares held in Treasury would only be
re-ssued at NAV per share or at a premium to NAV per share
This would ensure that the net effect of repurchasing and then
re-issuing the ordinary shares would enhance NAV per share
The Board 15 seeking shareholder approval to implement these
recommendations at the forthcoming AGM

VIABILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the 2014 UK Corporote Governance Code,
the Directors are now required to report on the viability of the
Company over a longer period than the twelve month penod

required by the Gomg Concern statement which is on page 23
This new statement can be found on page 13

CONTINUATION VOTE

In accordance wrth the Articles of Association of the Company, an
ordinary resolution thot the Company continve as an investment
trust for a further three years was passed at the 2013 AGM

A further continuation vote will be proposed at this year's AGM

The Company's NAV total return over the last three years was

69 4% compared to the Reference Index return of 52 6%, whilst the
share price rose by 68 0% The Company’s share price has been
at a discount to NAV in the past three years as follows 8 9% (at
3112 2013), 11 6% {at 3112 2014), and 14 &% (at 3112 2015)

As mentioned earlier in this report the Board took steps last
year to change the Portfollo Manager in order to address the
unsatisfactory long term performance of the Company against
Its peer group Further, since the stan of this year, the Board
has worked closely with its broker on establishing a buyback
programme 1n order to manage the Company’s discount, to the
extent possible, having regard to recent market volatihty and
the size of the Company

Therefore your Board recommends that shareholders vote in
favour of the continuation vole If the vote 1s passed, a further
continuation vote will take place at the Annual General Meeting
in 2019

AGM

The AGM will be held at 12 00pm on 24 May 2016 at the offices
of Fidelty at 25 Cannon Street, London EC2M 5TA {5t Paul's or
Mansion House tube station) and all investors are encouraged to
attend The Boord looks forward to the opportumity to speak to
shareholders of the Company The Portfolio Manager will attend
and will give a presentation on the past year and the prospects
for the coming year

QUTLOOK

It appears that the Japanese market continues to offer exciting
opporturities With the potential shift from deflation to inflation
and from contraction to growth, Japan 1s arguably on the cusp of
a sustained recovery




Unemployment has declined and 1s approaching 3%, which
means that more households are earning an income, ond the
prospects for further wage increases are improving While the
core CPl number 1s still running below the Bank of Japan’s 2%
target, it has been substantially affected by the drop in the oil
prce over the past year However, this energy price decline 1s
actually o huge boost for Japan as a country which imports all
required fossil fuels So-called “core-core” inflation, which strips
out the effects ot falling oll prices, 1s arcund 1% This means
that as indwiduals and companies make decisions about
consumphon and investment, they are more likely o make
positive choices

The key challenge for Japan 1s to remain focused on the reform
agenda Japan has had loose monetary policy for a sustained
penod of tme and what is really needed 1s a fundamental pick
up in end demand The employment picture I1s iImproving, inflation
1s gradually picking up and what really matters now is the
continuation of the government’s reform agenda In this respect,
Upper House elections in the summer, and possibly a general
election, will be cruaial for Pnme Minister Abe In retaining the
level of support required to push his reform agenda through

The improvements in corporate governance that we are seeing
are very important for equity investors Japanese companies
are actively taking steps to improve capital ethiciency and return
on equity ("RoE”), and are delivenng record levels of cash to
shareholders Fidelity believes that the Japanese market's RoE
should average around 11% over the next 2-3 years

The world’s third biggest economy may be on the verge of
returning to econemic relevance for capital markets This is not
factored into share prices and it s certaunly not reilected in
investors” portfolios Japan has an impreving fundamental story,
micro-level reforms are progressing well and valuotions are
reasonable

)

Dawid Robins
Chairman
31 March 2016

STRATEGY

Chairman’s Statement
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STRATEGY

Portfolio Manager’s Review

NICHOLAS PRICE
Portfolic Manager from 1 September 2015

PORTFOLIO MANAGER AND INVESTMENT APPROACH
Nicholas began his investment career over 20 years ago as a
research analyst at Fidelity’s Tokyo office and has been running
Japonese equity portfolios for both domestic and overseas
chents for 15 years Through more than two decodes of
expernence, he has developed a ngorous, bottom-up investment
approach based on in-depth fundamental research of individual
companies, underpinned by a strong sell discipline

Nicholas follows a ‘growth ot a reascnable prnice’ approach,
utiising Fidelity’s local research capability as well as its broader
global network In addition, he also conducts his own research,
looking for undercovered names by joining the dots between
multiple information sources in order to get ahead of the market
In {his way, he uses input from a number of perspectives,
including venture capital companies, regulators, academic
research, non-listed companies etc Nicholas typically attends
more than 300 company and related meetings per year and
looks closely at a company’s business model, particularly in
terms of sustainability and barniers to entry, valvations, hguidity
and potential upside versus downside

Detecting signs of change 1s also a key pillar of his investment
approach

+ Changes in fundamentals - internally dniven, such as market
share growth stemming from the introduction of highly
competitive new products or a company going global

* Changes in environment - such as a change n consumer
mindset and greater willingness to buy onling, fuelling strong
growth in nternet sales

+ Changes in sentiment - such as the gap between mid
term growth opportunities and overly pessimistic short term
market sentiment

* Changes in valuations - such as valuatien cntena changing
from price-to-book (hquidation valve) to price-to-earmings
{going-concern value)

Overall, Nicholas tends to invest more in mid cap growth
companies where he believes he can find better business
models and RoE, and where management 1s more incentivised
in terms of shareholder returns Being relatively young and
dynamic, small companies are often able to create their own
niche market and may therefore be capable of expanding their
business regardless of the external economic environment Over
time, areas such as internet services, Asion consumption, finance

Fidelty Jopanesa Values PLC Annual Repeort 2015

and environmental themes have yielded rewarding investment
ideas

TRANSITION OF THE PORTFOLIQO

Following the transition of Portfollo Manager, the Company has
shifted shightly up the market cap scale, with a weighted median
market cap of £2 7 bilhlon This compares with £1 2 billion under
the previous Portfolio Manager and £3 4 billion for the Reference
Index The Company continues to show a clear tit towards rmid
and small cap growth stocks Since the transition, the Company
has looked to invest in stocks and sectors which are showing
signs of improving corporate governance resulting from the
Abenomics programme, and has also taken advantage of the
theme of Chinese tounst spending 1n Japon Since the transition,
there has been a signficant mcrease in the Company’s weighting
n the Machinery, Chemicals and Qther Finance sectors In
Machinery, the Cempany has taken a positive view of companies
which benefit from automation, such as the mechanisation of
agriculture across emerging Asia In the Chemicals sector,
attractive opportunities have been identfied in fields such as
veterninary drugs for animals, whilst in the Cther Financials areq,
the Company has imiated positions i non-bank financial
services companes, which have tended to offer better
opportunities for growth, as well as higher shareholder returns
On the other hand, since the transition the Company has
reduced weightings in the Precision Instruments and Insurance
sectors as better opportunities were identified elsewhere

MARKET REVIEW

The year under review was a tale of two halves for the Jopanese
equity market The market performed strongly in the first half as
economic conditions continued to recover from the recession

of 2014 tnggered by the hike in consumption tax There was a
notable pickup in buying by overseas investors as signs of
mproving corporate governance and expectations for further
growth In corporate earnings bolstered sentiment Large cap
stocks generally performed well, as the yen continued to gently
depreciate against the backdrop of the Bank of Japan’s
quantitative easing programme

However, Japanese stocks corrected sharply in August as shares
and commodity prices fell globally amid intensifying concerns
about a slowdown in China and problems in emerging markets
more generally In the third quarter, the broad-based TOPIX
index suffered its worst quarterly dechine since June 2010
Overseas investors were aggressive net sellers of Japanese
stocks as the sell-off in global equity markets continued into
September Prime Minister Shinzo Abe laid out three new policy
arrows (o strong economy, parenting support and social secunty
reform), but the announcement was light on details and the
market impact was muted After a shight recovery in October and
November, the market ended the year on a weak note, with o
further big sell-oft in December

Agamst this backdrop, the performance gap between domestic
and external demand-onented stocks widened sigmficantly
Defensive stocks and beneiicianes of lower oil prices
outpertormed, whereas the energy, matenals and industrials
sectors were conspicuous laggards




STRATEGY

Portfolio Manager’s Review

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

As noted in the Chairman’s Statement, the Company’s NAY
increased from 81 48p to 101 536p dunng the year under review,
and outperformed the Reference Index

As demonstrated by the attnbution analysis below, the market’s
movement contributed 13 2% to the increase in the NAV per
share, whilst stock selection and geanng both added 2 5%,
respectively The appreciation of the yen aganst the pound,
particularly during the second half of the year, produced a
positive exchange rate effect, which contnbuted 6 3% to the
increase in the Company’s NAV

The attribution anclysis below shows how the increase in NAV
has been achieved

Analysis of change in NAV during the year (%)

Impact of

Reference Index (in yen terms) +132
Reference Index income (in yen terms}) +19
Stock selection {relative to the Index) +25
Gearing (yen) +25
Exchange rate +63
Charges 18
Total return for the year ended

31 December 2015 +24 &

Cver the year, stock selection In the services sector was the
pnncipal driver of the Company’s outperformance relative to the
Reference Index Three of the top ten contnbuters to performance
over the year were onhne businesses, namely Kakaku com,
Septen Holdings and M3 In oddition, hotel and resort operator
Fujita Kanko, a recent addition to the portfolio, performed well

on an increase in hotel room rates and o recovery at its hot
spring resort business

Among finencials, notable performers included Anicom Holdings,
a pel nsurance company, and Financial Products Group, o
provider of financial services for small companies seeking
tax-efficient investments These stocks have added valve over a
number of years, but as their valuations started to look stretched,
these postions were sold

In the retaill sector, MonotaRQ, an online suppher of factory-use
consumables, and Sena, an operator of discount stores, made
matenal contributions to returns However, this was tempered by
the disappointing performance of some inbound tounsm-based
stocks towards the end of the year Both positions were sold

Elsewhere, holdings in Asahi Intecc, a maker of specialised
medical tools, and Onc Pharmaceutical, a mid-sized drug
company renowned for its anti-cancer treatments, were notable
ouvtperformers Some profits were taken following their share
pnce gains, but overweight postions in both companies were
retained

Conversely, stock selection in the information and communication
sector detracted from performance One of the largest
detractors in 2014, WirelessGate (o provider of Wi-Fi services in
public spaces) continued to struggle and the position was sold

Mobile Create Company, a provider of mobile management
systems to transportation operators, lost ground as rising
development costs resulted in disappointing earmings results
This stock was also sold A new position in mobile carner
SoftBank also hurt performaonce, but looks attractive from o mid
to long term perspective

The tables below show the principal five contributors to, and
principal five detractors from, the Company's performance
relotive to the Reference Index

Principal
contributors
to relative
return

Sector

Reldative
average
weight {5o)

Contribution
lo relative
returns (%)

Anicom Holdings insurance 16 +13
Asahl Intecc . Precision

Instruments 18 +13
MonotaRO Retail Trade 09 +13
Kakaku com Services 16 +09
Sena Retail 290 +09

Principal
detractors
to relative
return

Sector

Relative
average
weight (%)

Contribution
to relative
returns (%)

Mobile Create Information & 12 13
Company Commumications

WirelessGate Information & 19 13
Communications

Rohm Electrical 24 -12
Appliances

SoftBank Information & 13 a7
Communications

Nihon Nohyaku Chemicals 08 07
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Portfolio Manager’s Review

PRINCIPAL CONTRIBUTORS

Anicom Holdings 1s a niche insurance company that specialises
in policies for pets, commanding 60% of Japan’s pet insurance
market The company reported solid resulis for the financial year
to 31 March 2015 and the first half of the finanaial year to

31 March 2016 In addition to an increase i insurance premiums,
growth in new policies and measures to hold down the loss ratio
contnbuted to a clear impravement in profitability Although
these measures are expected to continue to contnbute to margin
expansion in the near term, they have been fully discounted in
the pnce and valuations appeared expensive Therefore, the
stock was sold in September 2015

Asahi Intecc manufactures medical fools, as well as industrial-
use stainless wire rope The company continued te generate
strong profit momentumn as it increased its market share for
mainstay products (both 1n Japan and overseas) and enhanced
its product line-up Demand for Asahi Intecc’s niche guide wires
{used to navigate medical devices) and micro catheters remains
strong We expect the company to continue to achieve high
growth owing to its expanding market share

MonotaRO s an onhne suppher of {actory-use consumables to
small businesses It has gained significant market share 1n the
maintenance, repair, and operations market for small factones
through its e-commerce model The company maintained robust
levels of sales growth, supported by its supenor products and
aggressive promotion strategy Its margins olse improved
because of higher royalty income and eperational streamlining
Although MonotaRO continues to generate strong earnings
momentumn, the positive story 1s already priced in and its
valuation appears expensive The stock was therefore so!d in
September 2015

Kakaku com operates online price companson and restaurant
services websites The company announced favourable interm
results, supported by firm growth n sales at Tabelog {an
extensive online directory of information about restaurants and
eating places in Jopan) and new media It also reasserted its
commitment to hcrease shareholder returns and to maintain a
40% RoE over the mediwm term Kakaku com remains a top pick
as a structural winner in the expanding e-commerce market

Sena operates a nationwide chain of 100-yen shops in Japan,
the equivatent of a pound store in the UK it has the second
largest share of the domestic market and a strong track record
in generating same-store sales The company’s competitive
advantage hes in its precise control of inventery, which has
coniributed to top-line growth and improved profit qualty On
the expectation that margins weuld falter as o weaker yen
inflated its costs, the stock was sold in September 2015
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Portfolio

PRINCIPAL DETRACTORS

Mobule Create Company provides information technology (IT)
services (including vehicle tracking, wireless communication and
electronic payment systems) predominantly to the tax and bus
industries in Japan It reported lower-than-expected earmings
results and 1ssued weak forecasts due to nsing development
costs for its main product - integrated circurt cards (also known
as smart rechargeable cards) used on trains and buses As a
result, the stock was sold in October 2015

WirelessGate a provider of Wi-Fi services 1n public spaces n
lapan, continued to struggle its profit margins came under
pressure owing to the start-up costs of a new high-speed
connection service lts share of large Wr-F1 infrastructure projects
for corporate customers remained limited Increased competihion
in the personal SIM card segment represented an additional
headwind In ight of these factors, the position was sold In
October 2015

Rehm 1s a leading manufacturer of custom integrated circuits
and semiconductor devices with a high in-house production

ratio Concerns about a correchion in the semiconductor market
continved to weigh on the company's share pnice However,
Rohm remains well placed to capitalise on the structural growth
n autermnotive and mdustnal semiconductors Its commitment to
enhancing shareholder returns by returming 100% of free cashflow
1s also appealing, so the position remains in the portfolio

SoftBank i1s a leading provider of communication and internet
services, and ranks among Japan’s top three mobile camers

The stock was added to the portfolio in September and whilst
performance has improved, the stock has continued to lag the
Reference Index pnmanly due o sigrificant uncertainty surrounding
potenticl regulatory changes The lack of near term momentum

at i4s overseas businesses, particularly its US wireless unit Spnnt,
has also weighed on its shares However, SoftBank’s domestic
telecommunications business remains a stable source of income
Furthermore, the turnaround at Spant is also on track and therefore
SoftBank’s share price appears to be fundamentally undervalued

Nihon Nohyaku 1s a leading preducer of insecticides and
fungiaides Its weak share price performance reflected concerns
about a short term slowdown in earnings, as an increased
wventory of insechcides in Brazil appeared lkely to decrease
royalty income from Bayer Corp Science for the use of Nihon
Nohyaku's products In addition to the near term downside in
earnngs, the hikely impact of a patent expiry in 2019 for Nihon
Nohyaku's main product, Belt, could be more severe than imitially
expected As a result, the position was sold in May 2015

STRATEGY

Manager’s Review
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STRATEGY

Portfolio Manager’s Review

OUTLOOK

The external economic envirenment, centred on Ching and other
emerging markets, 1s generating a high level of uncertainty
However, conditions in developed countnes are relatively firm
and the recent market correction in Japan appears excessive
relative to the change in external fundamentals Monetary
condittons in Japan shouyld remain highly accommodative
throughout 2016, contrasting with the onset of @ moderate
tightening cycle 1n the US The Japanese market should continue
to recover, supported by gradual wage hikes This being the
case, corporate Japan can be expected to delver another year
of positive earnings growth in 2016

The three arrows of Abenomics (Prme Minister Shinzo Abe's
economic policies) have preduced mixed results, with success m
monetary policies and micro-level reforms contrasting with the
lack of progress on deregulation and other complex structural
1issues Abenomics 2 0 aims to boost the momentum of the initial
policy agenda and to tackle Japan’s longer term challenges
The coming year will therefore mark the start of a medium term
initiative, which should form the basis for sustainable growth in
the domestic economy Measures to ft productivity and deal
with Japan’s declining population will be key

We are also likely to see progress it the introduction of new
technologies, {including self-dnving vehicles, robotics and
artficial inteligence), as well as support for both working seniors
and families

The desire for reform 1n Japan remains firm and the corporate
sector 15 changing for the better Japanese companies are
commitied to improving capital etficiency and RoE, and many
are actively using free cash flow to improve shareholder returns
Established companies are refocusing on core competencies,
and cash-rich corporates are starting to deploy more of their
surplus funds fowards investment As pressure mounts on
companies to explain the economic ratronale for cross
shareholdings between compames, the pace of share buybacks
15 lkely to accelerate While the rate of change varnes on a
company-by-company basis, this commitment to broad-based
reforms 15 clearly good news for investors and should contnbute
to the performance of your Company

Nicholas Price

Portfoho Manager
31 Morch 2016
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Strategic Report of
the Company It provides a review of the Company’s business
and describes the principal nsks and uncertainties it faces An
analysis of the performance of the Company durning the financial
year and the position at the year end 1s included taking into
account its objective, strategy and nsks and how these are
measured vsing key performance indicators The Chairman's
Statement and Portfohio Manager's Review form part of the
Strategic Report

BUSINESS AND STATUS

The Company carries on business as an investment trust and has
been cccepted as an approved investiment trust by HM Revenue
& Customs under Sections 1158 and 1159 of the Corporation Tax
Act 2010, subject to the Company continuing to meet eligibility
condittons The Directors are of the opinion that the Company
has conducted its affeirs in o manner which wall satisfy the
conditions for continued approval

The Company 1s registered as an investment company under
Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and operates as such
it 15 not a close company ond has no employees

OBJECTIVE

The Company's objective is to achieve long term capital growth
from an actively managed portfolio of secunies pnmanly of
small and medwm sized Japanese companies listed or traded
on Japanese stockmarkets

STRATEGY

in order to achieve this objective, the Company operates as an
mvestment company which has an actively managed portfolio
of investments, consisting of Jopanese listed compantes

As part of the strategy, the Board has delegated the
management of the portfolio and other services The Portfolio
Manager aims to achieve o total return on the Company's total
assets aver the longer term in excess of the Reference Index, the
Russell Nomura Mid/Small Cap Index, as expressed in sterling
The stock selecton approach adopted by the Portfolio Manager
15 considered to be well suited 10 achieving the objective The
Board takes the view that investing in equities 1s a long term
process, and that the Company's returns te shareholders will
vary from year to year The Board takes the view that long term
returns for shareholders can be enhanced by the use of geanng
in a careiully considered and momtored way The level of
geanng Is reviewed by the Board and the Portfolio Manager on
a regular basis

The Board has reviewed the summary of the year's activities and
1510 ogreement with the mdicahons of hikely future developments
and the factors likely to affect these which are given in the
Chairman’s Statement and n the Portfolio Manager's Review on
pages 3to 10

STRATEGY

Strategic Report

INVESTMENT POLICY

The markets in which the Company may invest will compnse
primanly the Tokyo Stock Exchange, the Jasdaq and the regronal
stockmarkets of Fukuoka, Nogoya, Osaka and Sapporo

No matenal change will be made to the investment pohcy
without shareholder approval

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY, STYLE AND
PROCESS

The Portfollo Manager's investment approach 1s focused on
‘growth ot o reascnable price’, utthsing Fidelity’s extensive
research capability His investment approach and bias towards
mid and small cap growth stocks fits well with the Company's
investment philosophy and style

INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS
In order to diversify the Company’s portiolio, the Board has set
the following investment guidelnes for the Portfolio Manager

= A maximum of 7 5% in the aggregate of all secunties of any
one company or other investment entity (10% for any group of
companies) at the time of purchase, which is further imited to
12% of the Company’s equity portfolio bosed on the latest
market value

* A maximum of 5% of its assets {at the time of acquisition) In
securities which are not lsted on any stock exchange or
traded on the Jasdaq market (the Company would not
normally make any such imvestment except where the
Maonager expects that the securities would shortly become
registered for trading on the OTC market or become listed
on o Jopanese stockmarket)

* A maximum of 30% of its assets (at the ime of acquisition) in
equity-related and debt instruments The Company may also
invest in denvativess for efficient portfolic management to
protect the portfolio against market nisk Any such investment
would normally be at a low level as the Company invests
pnmarily in shares

* A maximum of 15% of the Company’s total assets may be
invested in the securnities of other investment trust companies

* The maximum that the Company can hold in cash would be
25% of the total value of the Company's assets Thig limut wili
not include any cash or cash equivalent pard as coliateral for
unreahsed losses on CFDs In practice the cash posiion will
normally be much lower Currently the Portfolic Manager has
discretion to hold 5% net cash

GEARING

The Company's policy is to be geared in the belief that long term
investment returns will exceed the cost of geanng This geanng s
obianed through the use of CFDs 1o obtain exposure to Japanese
equities selected by the Manager The effect of gearing 1s to
magnify the consequence of market movements on the porticho
and if the portfolio value nses the NAV will be positively
impacted, butif it falls the NAV will be adversely impacted

Fidelity Japanese Volues PLC Annua! Report 2015
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The aggregate exposure of the Company to Japanese equities,
whether held directly or through CFDs, will not exceed
shareholders’ funds by more than 30% at the time any CFD 1s
entered into or a secunty ocquired The Board also intends that
the exposure will net exceed shareholders’ funds by more than
40% at any other ime uvnless exceptional circumstances exist
Currently the Portfolio Manager has discretion to be 25% geared

At the year end the Company was 16 6% geared (2014 22 2%)

PERFORMANCE

The Company’s performance for the year ended 31 December
2015 and details on trends and factors that may impact the
future performance of the Company cre included in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Portfolio Manager’s Review on
pages 3 to 10 The Portfolio Listing, Gearing, Distrnbution of the
Portfolio, Ten Year Record and Summary of Performance Charts
are on pages 15 to 21

RESULTS

The Company’s results for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out In the Income Statement on page 39 The total return per

ordinary share was 20 10 pence of which the revenue return was
a loss of 014 pence

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The key performance indicators ("KPIs") used 1o determine the
performance of the Company and which are comparable to
those reported by other investment trusts are set out below

Yeor ended  Year ended
31 December 31 December

2015 2014

% %

NAV per share' (undiluted) +24 6 +31
Share Price’ +205 +00
Russell Nomura Mid/Small

Cap Index’ +19 4 +51
Discount to NAV (undiluted) 146 16
Ongoing Charges? 152 162

1
H

Total returns {includes relnvested Income)
The Board regularly considers the costs of running the Company to ensure
they are reasonable and competitive

Sowces Fidelity and Datastream
Post performonce Is not a guide ‘o future returns

As welt as the KPls above, the Board regularly reviews the
Company’s performance against its peer group of investment
trusts Long term perlormance 1s also monitored and the Ten
Year Record and the Summary of Performance Charts on pages
19 to 21 show this information

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

As required by provision C 21 of the UK Corporate Governance
Code 2014, the Board has a robust ongoing process for

Fideity Japanese Values PLC Annual Repcrt 2015

tdentifying, evaluating and managing the pnncipal risks laced
by the Company and this 1s reviewed on a regular basis

The Board 1s responsible for the Company’s system of nsk
management and of nternal controls and for reviewing s
effectiveness It determines the nature and extent of any nisks it1s
willing to take in order to achieve its strategic objectives An
internal controls report providing an assessment of nsks, together
with controls 1o mitigate these nsks, 1s prepared by the Manager
and considered by the Audit Committee at each of its meetings

The Alternative Investment Fund Manager, FIL Investment
Services (UK) Limited, also has responsibility for nsk management
for the Company It works with the Board to identify and manage
the principal nisks and to ensure that the Board can continue to
meet its UK corporate governance obligations

The Board considers the following as the principal nisks and
uncertaintes faced by the Company

Market Risk

The Company’s assets consist mainly of listed secunties and the
pnncipal nisks are therefore market related such as market
downturn, interest rate movements and exchange rate
movements The Portfolio Manager's success or failure 1o protect
and ncrease the Company’s assets against this background is
core to the Company’s continued success

Risks to which the Company 1s exposed and which form part of
the market nsk category are mcluded 1n Note 16 to the Financral
Statements on pages 49 to 53 together with summanes of the
policies for managing these nsks These comprise market price
nsk (comprising interest rate nsk, foreign currency nsk and other
pnice nsk), iquidity nsk, counterparty nsk, credit nsk and
denvative instruments nsk

Parformance Risk

The Board reviews nsk at each Board meeting, considers the
asset allocation of the porticlio and the rnisk associated with
Japan and industry sectors within the parameters of the
nvestment objective and strategy The Portfolio Manager 1s
responsible for actively monitonng the portfohio selected in
accordance with the asset allocation parameters and seeks to
ensure that individual stocks meet an acceptable nsk/reward
profile The emphasis 1s on long term results as the Company
nsks volatility of performance in the shorter term

The Board appointed a new Portfolio Manager from

1 September 2015 This change incurred @ degree of transition
nsk as the new Portfolio Manager made changes to the portfoiic
and geanng levels

Discount Control Risk

The Board cannet fully control the discount at which the
Compony's ordinary share price trades in relation to net asset
value However, it can have a modest influence in the market by
maintaining the profile of the Company through a marketing
campaign and, under certain circumstances, through
repurchasing shares The Company’s share price, NAV and







discount volctility are monitored daily by the Manager and
considered by the Board regularly

Gearing Risk

The Company has the option to make use of loan facilites or to
use CFDs to invest in equities The prnncipal nsk is that, while in a
nsing market the Company will benefit from gearing, in a falling
market the mpact would be detnmental Other nsks are that the
cost of geanng may be too high or that the term of the geanng
Is inappropniate in relation to market conditions The Company
currently has no bank loans and gears through the use of long
CFDs Utihsing long CFDs for gearng purposes provides greater
flexibility and has been significantly cheaper than traditional
bank lcans The Board regularly considers the level of geanng
and gearmng nsk and sets imits within which the Portfolio
Manager must operate

Currency Risk

The functional currency of the Company in which it reports its
resulls 1s UK sterling, however, most of its assets and its income
are denominated 1n yen Consequently, it 1s subject to currency
nsk on exchange rate movements between UK sterling and yen
it 15 the Company’s policy not to hedge against currency risks
Further details can be found 1n Note 16 to the Financial
Statements on pages 49 to 53

Tox and Regulatory Risks

A breach of Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 could
iead to a loss of investment trust status, resulting n the Company
being subject to tax on capital gans A breach of other legal
and regulatory rules may iead to suspension from listing on the
London Stock Exchange or a qualified audit report The Board
receves regular reports from the Manager confirming regulatory
comphance dunng the year

Operationol Risks

The Company has no employees cnd relies on o number of third
party service providers, principally the Manager, Registrar,
Custodian and Depositary The Company is dependent on the
Manager’s control systems and those of its Registrar and
Custodian beth of whom are monitered and managed by the
Manager in the context of the Company’s assets and interests on
behalf of the Board The Depositary, under a irn-partite
agreement, oversees the custody of investments and cash The
secunty of the Company’s assets, dealing procedures,
accounting records and the maintenance of regulatory and legal
requirements, among other things, rely on the effective operation
of such systems

The Manager, Registrar and Custodian are subject 1o o risk-
based programme which 1s monitored by the Manager In
addition, service providers’ own internal controls reports are
received by the Board and any concerns investigated

Although the hkehhood of poor governance, comphance and
operational admimistration by third party service providers s low,
the financial consequences could be senous, including the
associated reputational damage to the Company

STRATEGY

Strategic Report

Other Risks

A continuation vote takes place every three years There 1s a nsk
that shareholders may not vote 1n favour of continuation during
penods when performance 1s poor The next continuation vote
will take place at this year's AGM on 24 May 2016

VIABILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with proviston C 2 2 of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, 1ssued by the Finanaial Reporting Councif n September
2014, the Directors have assessed the prospects of the Company
over a longer period than the twelve month penod required by
the “Going Concern” prowvision The Company is an investment
trust with an objective of achieving long term capital growth

and the Board consider three years i1s an appropriote investment
hornzon to assess the viability of the Company This time penod 1s
also consistent with the Company’s continuation vote which takes
place every three years, the next one taking place at this year’s
AGM

The Board has taken account of the Company’s current position,
the principal nsks that 1t faces and thew potential impact on its
future development and prospects, the Company's investment
objective and strategy, the mvestrnent capabilities of the
Manager and the current outlook for the Japanese economy and
equity market The Directors, therefore, confirm that they have o
reasonable expectation that, subject to shareholders voting in
favour of continuation at this year's AGM, the Company will be
able to continve n operation and meet its hatilities as they tall
due over the three year pencd of assessment

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board carries out any candidate search ogainst a set of
cbjective cntena on the basis of ment, with due regard for the
benetlits of diversity on the Board, including gender As at

31 December 2015, there were five male Directors and one
female Director on the Board

EMPLOYEE, SOCIAL, COMMUNITY, HUMAN RIGHTS AND
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The Company has no employees and all of #s Directors are
non-executive and it therefore has no disclosures to make in
respect of employees and human nights

The Company’s inancial reports are printed by a company which
has won awards for its environmental awareness and further
details of this may be found on the back cover of this report

Details about Fidelty’s own community involvement may be
found on 1ts website at www fidelity co uk

SOCIALLY RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT

The Manager beheves that igh standards of corporate socal
responsibility ("CSR”) make good business sense and have the
potential to protect and enhance investrent returns
Consequently, its investment process tokes social, envirenmental
and ethical 1ssues into account when, in its view, these have a
material impact on either investment nisk or return
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GREENHQUSE GAS EMISSIONS

The Company has no premsses, consumes no elecinicity, gas or
diesel fuel and consequently does not have a measurable
carbon footprint FIL Investments International 1s registered with
the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficrency Scheme
administered by the Environment Agency

CORPOQRATE ENGAGEMENT

The Board believes that the Company should, where
appropnate, take an active interest in the affairs of the
companies in which it invests and that it should exercise its voting
nghts at their general meetings Unless there are any particularly
controversial issues (which are then referred to the Board) it
delegates the responsibility for corporate engogement and
shareholder voting to the Manager These activities are reviewed
annually

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Some trends likety to atfect the Company n the future are
common io many mvestment companies together with the impact
of regulatory change The factors likely to affect its future
development, performance and position are set out in the
Chairman's Statement and the Portfolio Manager’s Review on
pages 3to 10

By order of the Board

FIL Investments International
Secretary

31 March 2016

/

of FIL Administration Limited
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PO rthI iO I.iSti ng as at 31 December 2015

The Portfolio Exposures shown below measure exposure to market price movements as a result of owning shares and long CFDs The
Fair Values shown measure the actual value on the Balance Sheet

Portfolio
Exposure Fair Value
Shares and fong CFDs £'000 %' £'000

Kubota
Manufacturer of tractors and heavy equipment 7611 66 7611
AEON hinancial Service
Provider of loans, credit cards and customer instalment credits 7324 63 7324
Nissan Chemical Industries
Producer of chemicals, agrochemicals and pharmaceutical products 7,173 62 7173
Kaokaku com
Provider of price companson services, product infermation and internet
advertising services 5,602 48 5,602
Onix (long CFD)?
Provider of ieasing, real estate loans, life insurance, banking and consumer finance 4,673 40 (35)

SoftBank (long CFDY
Provider of telecommunication services including ADSL and fibre optic Internet

connection 4,584 40 (107}
Rohm (long CFD)?

Manufacturer and distributor of electronic components 4,036 35 {975)
Zojirushi

Manufacturer of kitchen apphances, heatansulating containers and environmental

equipment 3,747 32 3,747
Makita

Manufacturer of electric power tools 3,634 31 3,634
Mazda Motor (shares and long CFD)?

Manufacturer of cars, trucks and auto ports 3,506 30 2,183
Ten largest exposures {2014 246 0%) 51,890 447 36,157
Keyence 3,215 28 3,215
Rinnai 3,021 26 3,021
J Front Retaihng 2,965 26 2,965
M3 (long CFD)? 2,890 25 152
Nippon Shinyaku 2,842 25 2,842
Shionogi 2,805 24 2,805
Kao 2,345 20 2,345
Ferrotec 2,282 20 2,282
Cno Pharmaceutical {long CFD)? 2,202 19 892
Fujita Kanko 2,181 19 2,181
Ryohin Keikaku 2,168 19 2,168
Aq Holdings 2161 19 2,161
HIS 2,040 18 2,040
Aska Pharmaceutical 2,030 18 2,030
NITTA Corporation 1,949 17 1,949
ASICS Corporation 1,948 17 1,948
Septeni Holdings 1,927 17 1,927
Shincken Group 1,912 16 1,912
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Portfolio Listing s 31 vecember 2015

Portlolio

Exposwre Fair Value

Shares and fong CFDs £'000 £'060
Hoshrzak Electnc 1,816 16 1,816
Sakata INX Corporation 1,781 15 1,781
Okamoto Industries 1,755 1% 1,755
THK Co 1,725 15 1,725
Tasak Shinju 1,507 13 1,507
Eiken Chemical 1,444 12 1,444
Asain Intecc 1,431 12 1,431
Kotobuki Setka 1,268 11 1,268
Kyontsu Maintenance 1,203 10 1,203
Descente 1,164 10 1,164
Start Today 1,150 10 1,150
Open House 1,136 10 1,136
Protax 1,078 a9 1,078
Nichias 1,025 09 1,025
PC Depot 1,024 09 1,024
Nibon Flush 1,016 (1343 1,016
Optex 1,007 09 1,007
Nakamura Choukcu 971 08 971
Juke 213 08 213
Mitsubishi Pencil 13 08 913
Sinko Industries 895 08 895
Yamabiko 830 o7 830
Dakin Industnes 823 07 823
Gurunavi 788 07 788
Apamanshop Heldings 786 07 786
Yamaha Motor 777 07 777
Nifco 672 06 472
Fuy Corporation 625 05 625
Ride On Express 609 a5 409
NEXT Co 548 as 548
Jamco 544 05 544
Yonex 519 04 519
Nojima 485 04 485
Sagami Rubber Industnes 485 04 485
Takumo 476 04 476
CAC 443 04 443
PAL Co 427 04 427
Komehyo 350 03 350
Chugar Pharmaceutical 344 03 344
Freund 328 03 328
Talkisha 327 03 327
VT Holdings 308 03 308
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PorthIiO LiSting as at 31 December 2015

Porifolic

Exposure Fair Value
Shares and long CFDs £'000 £°000
Eizo Corporation 280 02 280
lino Kawwn Karsha 276 02 276
Universal Entertainment 269 02 249
Bengo4d com 264 02 264
Creek & River 235 02 235
Pressance 233 02 233
Kusun No Aok 227 02 227
N Field 201 02 20
Yamaya 193 02 193
Sawada Holdings 188 Q1 188
Information Services Internatienal-Dentsu 181 01 181
Niton Holdings 63 - 63
Samantha Thavasa Japan 39 - 39
Kunyama Heldings 28 - 28
Sysmex 26 - 26
Suzuki Motor 23 - 23
Ezakl Glico 15 - 15
Shinser Bank 13 - 13
Hokkaido Chuo Bus ? - 9

Total Portfolio Exposure 135,252 116 6
Total Portfolio Fair Yalue® 115,471
Net current assets excluding denvatives 529
Shareholders’ Funds (per the Balance Sheet on page 41) 116,000

' Portfolio Exposure is exprassed as @ percentage of Shareholders Funds

Investment via long contracts for hfference (“CFDs") pravides exposvre o the undedying share price in excess of the foir value
3 Total Perttolie Fair Volue comprises {per the Balance Sheet on page 41) investments £115,532,000 plus dervative assets £1,0556,000 less derfvative hablities £1,117,000

Gea I'l ng as ot 31 December 2015

Portiolio Exposure

2015 2014

Shares and long CFDs £'000 £'000
Investments - shares 115,532 82,486
Denvative instruments - long CFDs 19,720 31,063
Total Portfolic Exposure 135,252 113,549
Shareholders’ Funds 116,000 92,886
Gearing - Total Portfolio Exposure in excess of Shareholders’ Funds 16 6% 22 2%
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DiStI’ibUtion Of the POI‘thliO as ot 31 December 2015

Portiolic Exposure

2015 2014

e, o
Machinery 175 49
Services 159 209
Etectnical Applances 126 181
Chemicals 103 110
Other Financing Business 103 15
Pharmaceuticals 101 48
Retall Trade 86 94
Other Products 51 06
Information & Communications 45 25
Transpert Equipment 42 56
Rubber Products 36 -
Metal Products 35 04
Real Estate 35 45
Wholesale Trade 19 48
Precision Instruments 12 55
Foods 1M -
Textiles & Apparel 10 32
Glass & Ceramics 09 06
Construction 03 38
Manne Transportation 03 -
Secunties & Commodity Futures 02 11
Insurance - 33
Banks - 24
Neon-ferrous Metals - 23
Land Transportation - 22
Iron & Steel - 13
Electnc Power & Gas - 0s
Total Portfoho Exposure 1166 1222

' Portfollo Exposure is expressed as a percentage of Shareholders’ Funds

Fidelity Japanese Values PLC Annual Report 2015




STRATEGY

Ten Year Record

Histoncal Record

as at 31 December 2012
Total portfolio exposure (Em)' 135 114 105 70 77 79 58 75 79 92 137
Shareholders’ funds (£m) 116 93 907 58 63 65 53 51 65 78 121

NAV per ordmary share (p) - undiluted 10156 8148 7902 5994 6417 6844 5556 5358 6667 7959 12356

NAV per ordinary shore {p) - diluted 9908 nfa nfo 5991 6279 6621 5547 nfa n/a n/a nfa

Ordinary share price (p) 8675 7200 7200 5163 5250 5725 4850 4175 5850 7350 13025

Subscription share price (p) 313 425 n/a 080 570 175 828 n/a nfa n/a nfa

Discount/(premum) to NAV % - undiluted 146 116 8¢9 139 182 164 127 221 123 77 (54)

Discount to NAV % - diluted 124 n/a n/a 128 164 135 126 nfa nfa n/a n/a

Revenue {loss)/return per
ordinary share (p) {014) (045) (030) (006) 002 (030) (073) (012) (049) (068) (102)

Ongoing charges (%)
{cost of running the Company) 152 162 180 200 198 208 217 198 165 146 183

Geanng (%Y 166 222 168 210 2312 09 38 285 207 16 ¢ 115

NAV per ordinary share total return
performance - undiluted {%) +24 6 +31 +318 46 42 +232 +37 196 162 356 +734

NAV per ordinary share total return
performance - diluted (%) +216 n/a nfa 57 52 +194 n/a n/a nfa n/a nfa

Ordinary share price total return
performance (%) +205 00 +395 17 83 +180 +162 -286 -204 436 +1109

Russell Nomura Mid/Small Cap Index
tota! return (in sterling terms) (%) +194 +51 +217 31 93 +186 43 +4 4 85 -185 +445

The total exposure of the investment partfalio, including exposure to the investments underying the long CFDs The amounts pnor to 2009 reprasent total assets less
creditors, excluding bank loans

The ssue of 17,232,149 ordinary shares, on the exercise of subscription share nghts, contnbuted £9 4 million to the increase in shoreholders’ funds

Total porticlio expasure in excess of shareholders’ funds The amounts prior to 2007 represent total assets, Jess bank leans plus cash at bank, in excess of
shareholders’ funds

Sources Fidelity and Datostream
Past performance 1s not a guide to future returns
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Summary of Performance Charts

Total return performance for ten years to 31 December 2015

Total return performance relative to the Reference Index for ten yeors to 31 December 2015

Fidelity Japanesa Values PLC Annual Repert 2015




Summary of Performance Charts

NAV ond share price for ten years o 31 December 2015

Discount to NAVY for ten years to 31 December 2015 (%)
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Board of Directors

Dawvid Robins!
(Charman} {Date of appointment 1 February
2011, appointed Chairman on 10 May 2012)1s
Senior Independent Director of SVG Capital
plc and a Director of NHBS Limited and
Seralux Inc He 15 also a member of the
advisory board of Millenium Associates AG
Previously, he was Chairman and Chief
Executive of ING Banngs following 18 years
with UBS, most recently as Executive Vice
President Europe having spent several years
in Zurich, New York and Tokyo Prior to this he was, i succession, a
Japanese Economist at the Bank of England, an Executive 1n the
Japanese department of James Capel and then Far Eastern Economist
and subsequently Chief International Economist at Philips & Drew He
began his career with the Commonwealth Bank i Sydney

Sir Laurence Magnus!'
{Chairman of the Audit Committee) {Date of
appomntment 1 October 2010, appointed as
Chairman of the Audit Committee 12 May
2011) 15 a Senior Advisor to Evercore Partners,
the US Iisted corporate finance advisory
business and Chairman of Historic England
He s Charman of J P Morgan Income &
Capstal Trust PLC, a Director of Pantheon
International ple, a Director of Aggregated
Micropowear Holdings plc and a Director or
trusiee of a number of private companies and chanties Previously he
worked for Samuel Montagu & Co Limited (HSBC Investment Bank) in
a corporate finance advisory capacity, including a number of years
spent in Singapore with responsibiliies in South East Asia He was
subsequently, in succession, a Director of Phoenix Secunties, a
Managing Director of Donaldson, Lufkin and Jenrette and o Managing
Oirector of Credit Swisse First Boston betore joining Lexicon Partners
in 2001, imtrally as Deputy Chatrman and subsequently as Charrman
prier to its merger with Evercore in 2011

Philip Kay'

(Date of appointment 29 October 2004) 1s Q
former Managing Director and Semor Advisor
of Credit Suisse First Boston where he ran the
global Japanese cash equity business He 1s
a Director of three Asion hedge funds, the
Akamatsu Fund, the Akamatsu Bonsar Fund,
and the Counterpoint Asian Macro Fund,

and of an unquoted UK company, Bio-bean
Lmited He 15 a fellow of Wolison College,
Oxford Previously he was a Director of
Schroder Securities Limited and of Smith New
Court PLC

' Member of the Audit, Management Engagement and Nomination Committees
7 Member of the Audit and Nomination Committees
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David Miller, OBE!

(Date of appointment 29 October 2004,

date of eppomtment as Senior Independent
Director 1 Janvary 2013) 1s a Director of FBG
Investment Limited and a number of other
unquoted compames He wos with Robert
Fleming Group from 1972 to 1991, was
resident 1n Japan for nearly eight years and
wos Head of the Fleming Group’s Tokyo office

Mami Mizuton’
(Date of appointment 17 November 2014)
worked for the Jopanese Mimstry of Foreign
Affars where her posts included Director of
the Jopan Information and Culture Center at
the Embassy of Japan in Londeon and Director
for Finanaial Affairs for the Foreign Ministry of
Japan in Tokyo She 1s an Executive Director
of the Samsbury Institute for the Study of
Japanese Arts and Cultures and acts as a
special advisor in Japanese studies to the
University of East Anglra She 1s alse o director of the Association for
Aid and Relief, Jopan and a frustee of the Daiwa Anglo-Japanese
Foundation

Dominic Ziegler'

(Date of appointment 17 November 2014}
currently holds the post of Asia Editor ot The
Economist tn London He has over 25 years’
experience 1n top fight journalism and
commentary, with o speciat expertise in East
Asian offairs, particularly Japan, having
previously served as The Economist’s Tokyo
Bureau Chief




The Dwectors have pleasure in presenting therr report and the
audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2015

The Company was mcorporated in England and Watles as o
publc lmited company on 10 February 1994 under the registered
number 2885584 and was launched on 15 March 1994

Details of the Company’s business and status can be found 1n the
Strategic Report on page 11

MANAGEMENT COMPANY

FIL Investment Services {UK} Limited (“FISL") was appointed as
the Company's Alternative Investment Fund Manager (the
“Manager”) with effect from 17 July 2014 At the same time, FISL,
as the new Manager, delegated the portfolio management of
assets and the role of the company secretary to FIL Investments
International (“FII*)

The Alternative Investment Fund Management and Secretanal
Services Agreement (the “Management Agreement”) will
continue unless and until terminated by either party giving to the
other not less than six months’ notice 1in wnting However, it may
be terminated without compensation if the Company 1s
liquidated, pursuant to the procedures laid down in the Articles
of Association of the Company The Management Agreement
may also be terminated forthwith as a result of a matenal
breach of the Management Agreement or on the insolvency of
the Manager or the Company In addition, the Company may
terminate the Management Agreement by sixty days’ notice if
the Manager ceases to be a subsidiary of FIL Limited

SERVICES AND FEE ARRANGEMENTS

The Management Agreement provides investiment management
senices for an annual fee of 0 85% of the value of the Company's
assets under management, including the exposure to the
nvastments underlying the long CFDs, but excluding investment
in any fund managed by the Manager The fee I1s payable
quarterly in arrears at a rote of 0 2125% per quarter and 1s
based on the last bustness day of March, June, September and
December Fees for the year ended 31 December 2015 were
£1,130,000 {2014 £954,000)

The Manager provides secretanal and admirustration services
payable quarterly in arrears Fees for the year ended
31 December 2015 were £45,000 (2014 £45,000)

The Manager provides marketing and administration in
connection with the Fidelity Investment Trust Share Plan and the
Fidelity Individual Savings Account ("ISA”) Costs for the year
ended 31 December 2015 were £77,000 (2014 £84,000)

The total amount outstanding at 31 December 2015 to the
Manager for all the above services was £369,000 (2014
£338,000) This amount 1$ included within “Other creditors” in
Note 12 on page 47

The Marager has an arrangement with certain brokers whereby
a portion of commussions from secunty transactions may be paid
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to the Company to reduce transaction costs Amounts received
by the Company under this arrangement are credited to capital
and included in the ‘Realised gains/{losses) on sales of
nvestments’ in Note 9 on page 46 In the year to 31 December
2015, £8,000 was received (2014 £10,000) There 1s a regulatory
requirement on the Manager to obtain best execution and no
mndividual deal 1s entered into which prevents compliance with
this requirement

As at the dote of this report, FIL Limited has an mterest in
1,644,984 subscription shares in the Company on its own account

THE BOARD

Dawd Robins {Charman), Philip Kay, Sir Laurence Magnus, Dawid
Miller, Mami Mizutori and Domimic Ziegler all served on the
Board throughout the year ended 31 December 2015 Simon
Fraser served on the Board until 4 June 2015 and retired at the
conclusion of the AGM

All of the Directors, with the exception of David Miller, will retire
at the AGM on 24 May 2016 and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election Dawid Miller retires at the conclusion of the
forthcoming AGM Biographical details of ail the Directors at the
date of this report are shown on page 22 and give an ndication
of their qualifications for Board membership

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

In addition to benefits enjoyed under the Manager's global
Directors’ and Officers’ iability insurance arrangements, the
Compary maintans insurance cover for its Directors under its
own policy as permitted by the Companies Act 2006

GOING CONCERN

The Directars have considered the Company's investment
objective, nsk management policies, hquidity nsk, credi nisk,
capital management policies and procedures, the nature of its
portioho (being mainly secunties which are readily realisable)
and its expenditure and cash flow projections and have
concluded that the Company has adeguate resources to
continue to adopt a going concern basis i prepanng these
Finanaial Statements

The Boord has also taken into consideration the fact that a
continuation vote 1s proposed at this year's AGM and the
likehhood of shareholders voting 1n favour of continuation

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR
As required by Section 418 of the Compames Act 2006, each
Director in office as at the date of this report each confirms that

0) so far as they are aware, there 15 no relevant audit
information of which the Auditer 1s unaware, and

b) each Director has taken all the steps that ought to have been
taken as o Director to make himseli/herself aware of any
relevant audit information, and o establish that the
Company’s Auditor 1s aware of that information
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AUDITOR'S APPOINTMENT

In line with emerging best corporate governance practice and
EU regulations on mandatory audit rotation, an audrt tender
process was carned out by the Compony dunng 2015 and, os o
result, it wos recommended that Ernst & Young LLP be appointed
as the Company’s Independent Auditor for the penod starting
from 1 January 2016 As a result, Grant Thornton UK LLP will not
be seeking reappointment as the Company’s auditer for the
finanaial year commencing 1 January 2016

A resolution to appomt Emst & Young LLP as Auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the ferthcoming AGM together
with a resclution 1o authorise the Directors’ to determine thew
remuneration

CONTINUATION VOTE

Continuation votes are held every three years and the next
continuation vote will take place at this year's AGM on 24 May
2014 [f the vote 1s passed, a further continuation vote will take
place at the AGM n 2019

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Full details are given in the Corporate Governance Statement,
which forms part of this Directors’ Report, on pages 26 to 29

REGISTRAR, CUSTODIAN AND DEPOSITARY ARRANGEMENTS
The Company employs Capita Asset Services to manage the
Company's share register Fees for their registration services for
the year under review amounted to £33,000 (2014 £26,000)

The Company employs JPMorgan Chase Bank as its Custodian
which is pnmanly responsible for safeguarding the Company's
assets Fees for its custodial services for the year under review
amounted to £12,000 (2014 £11,000) The Company employs
1P Morgan Europe Limited as its Depositary which 1s primanly
responsible for oversight of the custody of investment funds

and the protection of investor's interests Fees for its depositary
services for the year under review amounted to £14,000 (Date
of appointment 1707 2014 to 3112 2014 £4,000)

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s share capital compnses ordinary shares of

25 pence each and subscenption shares of 0 001 pence each As
at 31 December 2015, the share capital compnsed of 114,218,356
ordinary shares (2014 114,002,375} and 22,527,339 subscnption
shares (2014 22,743,320)

Each ordinary share in issue carnes one vote The subscnption
shares do not carry voting nghts Each subscription share gives
the holder the nght, but not the obhgation, to subscribe for one
ordinary share at the end of each month untit 29 April 2016
inclusive Each subscription share may only be exercised once
The exercise price 1s 86 50 pence per share
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PREMIUM/DISCOUNT MANAGEMENT ENHANCING
SHAREHOLDER VALUE

The Board recognises the importance of the relattonship
between the Company’s share price and the net asset value
per share and monitors this closely It seeks authonties from
shareholders each year to i1ssue shares at a premum or
repurchase shares at a discount to the NAY The Board will
exercise these authonties if deemed to be in the best interests
of shareholders as a whole

SHARE ISSUES

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2015, ¢ total of 215,981
(2014 47,541) ordinary shares were Issued following the exercise
of nghts attached to the subscnption shares

The authorities to 1ssve shares and dis-apply pre-emption nghts
expire at the conclusion of this year's AGM and therefore,
resolutions renewing these authornties will be put to shareholders
for approval ot the AGM on 24 May 2016

SHARE REPURCHASES

No ordinary shares were repurchased during the year to

31 December 2015 (2014 nil) Since 1 January 2016 and as at the
date of this report, the Company has repurchased 420,000
ordinary shares for cancellation

The authonty to repurchase ordinary shares expires at the
forthcoming AGM and a special resolution to renew the authonty
to purchase ordinary shares for cancellabion, including the abulity
to buy ordinary shares into Treasury, will therefore be put to
shareholders at the AGM on 24 May 2016

SUBSTANTIAL SHARE INTERESTS

As at 29 February 2016 and 31 December 2015, notfication had
been receved of the following interests of 3% or more in the
voting nghts of the Company

29 February 31 December

2014 2015

Shareholders % %
Wells Copital Management 2359 2319
Lazard Asset Management 1926 1913
1607 Caopial Partners, LLC 1170 1162
FIL Limited’ 964 7?74
South Yorkshire Pension Authority 425 425
Wesleyan Assurance 416 415

' Fidelity 15A/Share Plon Chents




An analysis of ordinary shareholders as at 31 December 201515
detailed in the table below

As at

31 December

2015

‘; of voting

Analysis ¢of ordinary shareholders share capital
Mutual Funds 3617
Retall Investors’ 2986
Pension Funds 24 43
{nsurance Companies 737
Hedge Funds 076
Trading and other 073
Chanties 0468
Total 100 00

' Includes Share Plan and ISA investors

AGM
THIS SECTION IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are In any doubt as to the action you should take, you
should seek your own personal financial advice from your
stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor or other financial adviser
auvthonsed under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000

If you have sold, transferred or otherwise disposed of all your
shares in the Company, you should pass this document, together
with any accompanying documents (but not the personalised
Form of Proxy or Form of Direction) as soon as possible to the
purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank or other
agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected, for
onward transmussion to the purchaser or transferee

At the AGM on 24 May 2016, resolutions will be proposed
relating to the ems of business set out In the Notice of Meeating
on pages 54 and 55, including the items of special business
summansed below

Continvation Vote

Resolution 101s an ordinary resolution seeking approval for the
Compony to continue as an investment trust for a further three
years The last continuation vote was passed in 2013

Authority to allot shares

By law, directors are not permitted to allot new shares (or to
grant nghts over shares) unless authorised to do so by
shareholders

Resolution 11 15 an ordinary resolution and provides the Directors
with a general authonty to allot secunties in the Company up to
an aggregate nominal value of £1,422,479 i passed, this
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resolutron will enable the Directors to allot @ maximum of
5,689,917 ordinary shares of 25 pence each which represents
approximately 5% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2016 and so that the Pirectors may
impose any hrits or restrictions and make any arrangements
which they consider necessary or appropnate to deal with
Treasury shares, fractional entitlements, record dates, legal,
regulatory or practical problems in, or under the laws of, any
terntory or any other matter The Directors would not intend to
use this power unless they considered that it wos in the interests
of shareholders to do so Any shares ssued would be at net
asset value per share, or at a prernium to net asset value per
share

Authonty to disapply pre-emption nghts

In certain circumstances it 1s beneficial for the Directors to allot
shares for cash otherwise than pro rata to existing shareholders
and the Companies Act 2006 provides for shareholders to give
such power to the Directors by waiving their pre-emption nghts

Resolution 1215 a special resclution disapplying pre-emption
nghts and granting avthonty to the Directors, without the need
for turther specaific shareholder approval, to make allotments of
equity securities or sale of Treasury shares for cash by way of
{a) nghts 1ssues, normally on a proportionate basis but where
necessary taking inlo account practical considerations, such as
fractions and toreign secunties laws, and (b) other 1ssues up to
an aggregate nominal value of £1,422,479 (approximately 5% of
the 1ssued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2016)

Avthonty to repurchase the Company’s shares

Resolution 13 15 a special resolution which renews the Company's
authonty to purchase up to 14 99% (17,058,373} of the number of
erdinary shares of 25 pence each n i1ssue {excluding shares held
in Treasury) on 31 March 2014 either for immediate cancellation
or for retention as Treasury shares at the determination of the
Directors Once shares are held in Treasury, the Directors may
only dispose of them in accordance with the relevant legisiation
by subsequently selling the shares for cash or cancelling the
shares Purchases of ordinary shares will be made at the
discretion of the Directors ond within guidelines set from time

to time by them in the light of prevailing market conditions
Purchases will only be made in the market at prices below the
prevailing net asset value per share

Recommendation The Board considers that each of the
resolutions 1s likely to promote the success of the Company
and is in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole The Directors unanimousty
recommend that you vote in favour of the resolutions as they
intend to do so in respect of thexr own beneficial holdings

By Order of the Board
FIL Investments International
Secretary

31 March 2014

7

For andon of FIL Admimstration Limited
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The Corporate Governance Statement forms part of the Directors’
Report The Company 1s committed to mantarning high
standards of corporate governance and the Board has put in
place a framework for corporate governance which it believes 1s
appropnate for an investment company

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODES

The Board follows the principles of the UX Corporate
Governance Code ("UK Code”) 1ssued by the Financial Reporting
Council (the “FRC”) in September 2014 and the AIC's Code of
Corporate Governance (the "AlC Code”) 1ssued by the
Association of Investment Companies ("AIC") in February 2015
The FRC has confirmed that investment companies which report
against the AIC Code and which follow the AIC Guide on
Corporate Governance will meet their obligations in relation to
the UK Code and paragraph %8 6 of the Listing Rules

The AIC Code and the AIC Guide can be found on the AIC’s
website at www theaic co uk and the UK Code at www frc org uk

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Company has complied with the recommendations of the
AIC Code and the relevant provisions of the UK Code for the
year under review and up 1o the dote of this report, except In
relation to the UK Code provisions relating to the rote of the chief
executive, executive directors’ remuneration, and the need for an
internal audit function

For the reasons set out in the AIC Guide, and as explained in the
UK Code, the Board considers that these provisions are not
relevant to the position of the Company, as it 1s an externally
managed investment company and has no execulive directors,
employees or internal operations

THE BOARD

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board, charred by Dawid Robins, consists of six non-executive
Directors and will revert to five non-executive directors when
David Miller steps down at the conclusion of the forthcoming
AGM The Directors believe that, between them, they have good
knowledge and wide experience of business in Japan, the Asia
region and of investment trusts The Directors believe that the
Board has an appropnate balance of skills, expenence,
independence and knowledge to discharge its duties and
provide effective strategic leadership and proper governance
of the Company

The Board follows a procedure of notification of other interests
that may anse as part of considering any potential conflicts
Dawvid Miller, the Senior Independent Director, fuliis the role as a
“sounding board” for the Chairman and as intermediory for the
other non-executive Directors where necessary Philip Kay will
take over as Senior Independent Director when David Miller
retires on 24 May 2016

Biographical details of all the Directors are given on page 22

Fidelty Japanese Values PLC Annual Report 2015

BOARD MEETINGS

The Boord meets at least four imes a year, including an annual
meeting in Tokyo, and the table on page 27 gives the attendance
record for the meetings held dunng the reporting year The
Portlolio Manager and key representatives of the Manager are
in attendance at these meetings Between these meetings there
is regular contact with the Manager and other meetings are
arranged as necessary Addtonally, Board Committees and
sub-groups meet to pursue matters referred from the Board and
the Chairman 1s 1n contact with the other Directors regulariy
without representatives of the Manager being present

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

The Beard has overall responsibility for the Company's affans
and for promoting the long term success of the Company All
matters which are not delegated to the Company’s Manager
under the Management Agreement are reserved for the Board's
decision Matters reserved for the Board include decisions on
strategy, management, structure, capital, share 1ssues, share
repurchases, geanng, inanaal reporting, nsk management,
mvestment performance, share price discount, corporate
governance, Board appointments and the appomntment of the
Manager and the Company Secretary

All the Directors are independent of the Manager and
considered to be free from any relationship which could
matenally interfere with the exercise of therr independent
Judgement All Directors are able to ailocate sufficient ime to the
Company to discharge therr responsibilities fully and effectively

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board has access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary The Company Secretary 1s responsible to
the Board for ensunng that Board procedures are followed and
that applicable rules and regulations are complied with Each
Director 1s entitled to take independent professional advice, at
the Company’s expense, in the furtherance of theirr duties

CHANGES TO THE BOARD

Changes to the Board take place 1n accordance with the
Companies Act 2004, the Company’s Articles of Association
and the AIC Code Any proposal for the appointment of new
Directors 1s discussed and approved by the whole Board
External consultants who have no connection with the Company
are used to 1dentfy potential candidates

DIRECTOR TRAINING

Upon appointment, each Director 1s provided with oll relevant
informatton regarding the Company and receives training on the
investment operations and edministration functions of the
Company, together with a summary of their duties and
responsibiliies to the Company Directors also receive regular
briefings from, among others, the AIC, the Company's Auditor
and the Company Secretary, regarding any proposed
developments or changes in law or requlctions that could affect
the Company and/or the Directors
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Management

Regqular Nomination Audit Engagement
Board Committee Committee Commitiee
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Dawvid Robins 5/5 11 3/3 1/1
Simon Fraser’ 2/2 11 11 n/a
Philip Kay 5/5 1 3/3 1/1
Sir Lavrence Magnus 5/5 171 3/3 ifal
Dawid Miller 5/5 1/1 3/3 171
Dominic Ziegler 5/5 171 11 /1
Mami Mizutor 5/5 1/1 1 ira

! retired on 4 June 2015

Figures indicate those meetings for which each Director was eligible to attend ond attended in the year Reguiar Board Meetings
exclude procedural meetings held to discharge, for example, formal approvals

ELECTION AND RE-ELECTION

The Dwrectors of the Company are subject to annual election
and re-election by the shareholders and the Board conduct
annual evaluations of each Director The Board has a policy of
reviewing the tenure of each Director annually and has agreed
that o Durector may serve for more than nine years, so long

as that Director s considered by the Board to continue to be
independent

BOARD EVALUATION

An annual process for the evaluation of the Board, its
Committees and its Directors 1s in place It takes the form of
written questonnaires and, if appropnate, interviews The
performance of the Chairman 1s evaluated by the other Directors
on an annual basis The Company Secretary and Portfolio
Manager also participate in these processes to provide all-round
feedback to the Board The results of these evalvations are
discussed by the Board and the process 1s considered to be
constructive in terms of identifying areas for improving the
functioning and performance of the Board and action 1s taken on
the basis of the results

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Full details of the Company’s Remuneration Policy and Direclors’
fees are disclosed in the Directors’ Remyneration Report on
pages 32 and 33 Directors’ share interests are disclosed on
page 34

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board discharges certain of its corporate governance
responsibilities through the Audit Commuittee, Nomination
Committee and Management Engagement Committee as set out
below

Terms of reference of each Committee can be found on the
Company's pages of the Manager's website at
www fidelity co uk/its

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee 1s chaired by Sir Laurence Magnus and
consists of all of the Directors Full detanls of the Audit Commuttee
are disclosed in the Report of the Audit Committee on pages 30
and 31

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Commuttee I1s chaired by David Robing and
consists of all of the Directors The Commitiee 1s charged with
nominating new Directors for consideration by the Board, and
in turn for approval by shareholders, and alse consideration

of the reappomtment of Directors Potential candidates are
recommended to the Board, independently of the Manager
As part of this process exiernal consuitants, who have no
connection with the Company, may be used in order to identify
potential candidates

The search for a candwdate 1s carned out against a set of
objective cnteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity

on the Board, including gender New Directors are appointed on
the basis of ment Care 1s taken to ensure thot appointees have
enough time to devote to the role

The terms and conditions of appoimntment of Directors are
avallable for inspection at the registered office of the Company
and will be made avallable prior to the forthcoming AGM

MANAGEMENT ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Management Engogement Commitiee 1s chaired by David
Robins and consists of all of the Directors It 1s charged with
reviewing and monitering the periormance of the Manager and
ensuning that the terms of the Company’s Management
Agreement remain competitive and reasonable for shareholders
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The cntena which the Board takes into consideration in reviewing
the performance of the Manager include the quahty of the team,
commitment of the Manager to the Company and investment
trust business, admimistration, accounting and the secretaryship
of the Company, investment management skills, expenence and
track record, shareholder relations and discount management,
and the Management Agreement, including fees, notice periods
and duties

The Commitiee met on 29 March 2016 and reviewed the
performance of the Manager for the year to 31 December 2015
The Committee noted the Company’s good long term
performance record and the commitment, gquality and
expenence of the team responsible for the Company and
conciuded that 1t was in the nterests of shareholders that the
appointment of the Manager should continue on the same terms

Details of the Management Agreement are set out in the
Directors’ Report on page 23

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

Set out on page 35 1s o statement by the Directors of ther
respensibilities 1n respect of the preparation of the Annual
Report and Financial Statements The Auditor has set out its
reporting responsibiities within the Independent Auditor's Report
on pages 36 to 38

The Board has a responsibility to present a faw, balanced and
understandabie assessment of annual, half-yearly, other price
sensitive public reports and reports to reguloters, as well as to
provide information required to be presented by statutory
requirements All such reports are reviewed and approved by
the Board prior 1o their 1ssue to ensure that this responsibility s
fulfilled

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board 1s responsible for the Company’s systems of nsk
management and of internal controls and for reviewing their
effectiveness Such systems are designed to manage rather than
ehminate nsk of falure to achieve business objectives and can
only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance agamst
matenal misstatement or loss

The Board has contractually delegated to external agencies,
meluding the Manager, the monagement of the mvestiment
portfclio, the custodial services (which include the safeguarding
of the assets), the depositary services, the registration services
and the day-to-day accounting and company secretanal
requrements Each of these contracts was entered into after fuil
and proper consideration by the Board of the quality and cost of
services offered including the control systems in operation in so
far as they relate 1o the affarrs of the Company
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The Board, assisted by the Manager, has underiaken a ngorous
nsk and controls assessment The business nisks have been
analysed and recorded in a nsk and internal controls report
which 1s regularly rewewed The Audit Committee has reviewed
the repert on the effectiveness of the internal controls maintoined
on behalf of the Company The Board also receives each year
from the Manager a report on its internal controls which includes
a report from the Manager's reporting accountants on the
control procedures in operation around the investment
management and administration processes

The Board confirms that there 1s an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the principal nisks faced by
the Company, and that it has been 1n place throughout the year
ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this Annual
Report This process 1s in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Counail's “Risk Management, Internal Control and
Related Financial Business Reporting” guidance

The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function
and has determined that the systems and procedures employed
by the Manager provide sufficient assurance that a sound system
of internal controls, to safeguard shareholders’ investments and
the Company’s assets, 1s maintasned An internal gudi function,
spearfic to the Company, 1s therefore considered unnecessary
The Audit Committee meets the Manager's internal audit
representative at least twice a year

WHISTLE-BLOWING PROCEDURE

Part of the Manager's role in ensuring the provision of a good
service pursuant to the Management Agreement includes the
abikty for employees of Fideity to raise concerns through a
workploce concerns escalation policy (or “whistle-blowing
procedure”} Fidelity has adwised the Board that it 1s committed
to providing the highest leve! ot service to iis customers and to
applying the highest standards of quality, honesty, integnty and
probity The aim of the policy 1s to encourage employees and
others working for Ridelity to assist the Company In tackling
fraud, corruption and other malpractice within the orgamisation
and in setting standards of ethtcal conduct This policy has been
endorsed accordingly by the Board

BRIBERY ACT 2010

The Company 1s committed to carrying out business farrly,
honestly and openly The Board recognises the benefits this has
to reputation and business confidence The Board, the Manager,
the Manager's employees ond others acting on the Company’s
behalf, are expected to demonstrate high standards of
behaviour when conducting business
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The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the implementation
and oversight of the Company’s procedures for preventing
bribery, and the governance framework for training,
commumcation, monitoring, reporting and escalation of
compliance together with enforcing actions as approprate The
Boord has adopted a zero tolerance policy in this regard

RESPONSIBILITY AS INSTITUTIONAL SHAREHOLDER

The Board has adepted the Manager’s Principles of Ownership
in relation to investments These pninciples include the pursuit of
an active investment policy through portfolio management
decisions, voting on resolutions at general meetings and
maintaining a continuing dialogue with the management of
nvesiee companies The Manager, in its Principles of Ownership,
expressly declares that it supports the Financial Reporting
Counail's UK Stewardship Code setting out the responsibiiitres of
institutional shareholders and agents Further details of the
Manager’s Principles of Ownership and voting may be found ot
www lidelty co uk

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with shareholders i1s given a high prionty by both
the Beard and the Manager All Directors are made aware of
shareholders’ concerns and the Chairman, Senior Independent
Director and other Directors are available to meet with major
shareholders to discuss strategy and governance The Board
regularly monitors the shareholder profile of the Company and
larses with the Manager and the Company’s broker who are m
regular contact with the Company’s mojor institutional investors
The Board aims o provide the maximum opportunity for
dialegue between the Company and shareholders If any
shareholder wishes to contact a member of the Board directly
they should contact the Company Secretary whose details are
given on page 59

All shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM at which
there will be a presentation by the new Portfolic Manager of the
past year’s results and the forthcoming year's prospects There
will be an opportunity to meet the Board, the Portfolio Manager
and representatives of the Manager The Board s locking
forward to the opportunity to speak to shareholders

The Notice of the AGM on pages 54 and 55 sets out the business
of the AGM and the special business resolutions are explained
more fully on page 25 of the Directors’ Report A separate
resolution is proposed on each substantially separate 1ssue
including the Annual Report and Financial Statements The
Chairman and other members of the Board will be available to
answer questions at the AGM and related papers are sent to
shareholders at least 20 working days before the Meeting

Voting nights in the Company’'s shares

Every shareholder on o show of hands has one vote On a poll
every shareholder who 1s present in person or by proxy or
represeniative has one vote for every ordinary share At general
meetings cll proxy votes are counted and, except where a poll 1s
called, proxy voting 1s reported for each resolution after it has
been dealt with on a show of hands The proxy voting results are
disclosed on the Company’s page of the Manager's website at
www hdelity co uk/its

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
Changes to the Company’s Articles of Assocration must be made
by special reselution

On behalf of the Board

Daowvid Robins
Chairman
31 March 2016
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Report of the Audit Committee

I am pleased to present the report of the Audit Committee (the
“Committee”) to shareholders on the role and responsibilities of
the Committee and the effectiveness of the independent audn
process and how this has been assessed tor the yeor ended

31 December 2015

COMPOSITION

The Committee 1s chared by me and consists of all of the
Directors The Committee considers that its members have
sufficient recent and relevant financial expernience to discharge
their responsibilities fully

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee’s authonty and duties are defined in its terms of
reference and are avarlable on the Company’s pages of the
Manager’s website at www fidehty co uk/its These dutres include

* Discussing with the Independent Auditor the nature and scope
of the audit and reviewing the Independent Auditor’s quality
control procedures, reviewing and monitoring the
effectiveness of the audit process and the Independent
Auditor’s independence and objectivity with particular regard
to the provision of non-oudit services, taking into
consideration relevant UK professional and regulatory
requirements and by seeking appropnate disclosures and
comiert from the independent Auditor,

Responsibility for making recommendations on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the Independent
Auditor,

Considening the scope of work undertaken by the Manager’s
internal audit department, reviewing the Company's
procedures for detecting fraud, and reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control systems (including
financial, eperational and compliance controls and nisk
management),

Monitaring the integnity of the half-yearly and annual finanaal
statements of the Company and reviewing these to ensure
they are fair, balanced ond understandable,

Reviewing the existence and performance of all controls
operating in the Company (including adherence to Sections
1158 and 1159 Corporation Tax Act 2010), and

Reviewing the relatonship with and the performance of third
party service providers (such as the Registrar, Custodian and
Depositary) and the risks associoted with audit firms
withdrawing from the market

MEETINGS AND BUSINESS CONSIDERED BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE DURING THE YEAR
The Committee met three times duning the reporting year and once with the Independent Auditor Attendance by each Director 1s

shown in the table on page 27

The following matters were dealt with at these meetings

March 2015 Review of

* The Company’'s nsk management and internal controls framework
* Complance with Corporate Governance and regulatory requirements

* The Going Concern statement

» The Annual Report and Financial Statements and recommendation of its approval to the Board

* The Independent Auditor’s report

* The independent Auditor’s performance and consideration of their re-appointment

» The Deposttary’s Oversight Report
+ The Committee’s terms of reference

July 2015 Review of

* The Company's nsk management and internal controls framework
» The Half-Yearly Report and Finanaial Statements and recommendation of ts approvai to the Board

+* The Committee’s terms of reference

Confirmahon of the Going Concern Statement

October 2015 Review of

+ The Independent Auditor's engagement Jetter and audit plan for the Company’s year ending 31 December 2015

» The Depositary’'s Oversight report

Confirmation of the decision to appoint Ernst & Young LLP as Auditor in respect of the year ending 31 December

2016, following a tender process
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Report of the Audit Committee

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES CONSIDERED BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Annual Report and Financial Statements are the responsibility of the Board and the Staternent of Directors’ Responsibilifies 1s on
page 35 The Committee advises the Board on the form and content of the Annual Report and Financial Statements, any 1ssues which
may arnse in relation to these and any speafic areas whrch require judgement

Summarised below are the most significant 1ssves considered by the Committee in respect of these Financial Statements, and how
they were addressed

Recogmtion of Investrment income 15 recognised In accordance with accounting policy Note 2(c) on page 42 The

Investment Income Manager provided revenve forecasts and varances to these forecasts were reviewed The Committee
reviewed the internal gudit and compliance monitonng reperts received from the Manager to satisfy
itself that adequote systems were in place for properly recording the Company’s investment income
Investment income was also tested and reported on by the Company's Independent Auditor

Going Concern The Going Concern statement 1s set out in the Directors” Report on page 23 The Committee satishied
itselt that the Board continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in prepanng the annual
timancial statements

Valuation, existence The valuation of investments (including denvatives) 1s in accordance with accounting policy Notes 2(1)
and ownership and 2(j) on page 43 The Committee received reports from the Manager and the Independent Auditor
of investments who had venfied the valvation of investments and dernivatives by reference to independent sources and

{including dervatives) had alse confirmed the existence and ownership of the investments with the Company’s Custodian and
that of the denvatives with the Company’s counterparty

Compliance with Approval for the Company to carry on business as on investment trust has been obtained, subject 1o the
Sections 1158 and Company continuing to meet eligibility cnteria Ongoing compliance with the eligibility cntenia 1s

1159 of the Corporation monitored on a regular basis with the help and guidance of the Company’s service providers or

Tax Act 2010 advisers

Principal Risks and The Commitiee reviewed the prnincipal nsks and uncertainties facing the Company and evaluated them
Uncertainties according to the likelihood of the risk occurnng and the impact the risk may have on the Company
Further details can be found on pages 12 and 13

INDEPENDENCE AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT PROCESS AUDITOR AND AUDIT TENURE

Grant Thornton UK LLP acted as the Company’s Independent The Company carried out a formal tender process durning the
Auditor for the year ended 31 December 2015 The Committee year at which a number of audit firms were considered and
reviewed the independence of the Auditor and the effectiveness  Ernst & Young LLP has been selected as the Company’s new

of the audit process independent Auditor for the forthcoming year Grant Thornton UK

LLP, which has been in office since 2006, will not seek re-election
With regard to the independence of the Auddor, the Committee at the forthcaming AGM and a resolution to appomnt Ernst &
reviewed Young LLP will be put to sharehelders for approval The
Committee will continue to review the Auditor's appointment
* the personnel in the audit plan for the year, each year to ensure that the Company is receiving an optimal
+ the Auditor's arrangements for managing any conflicts of level of service There are no contractual obligations that restrict
interest, the Company’s choice of auditor
* the extent of any non-audit services, and
» the statement by the Auditor that they remain independent
within the meaning of the regulations and their professional
stondards

With regard to the effectiveness of the audit process, the
Commuttee reviewed
Sir Laurence Magnus
*+ the fulthiment by the Independent Auditor of the agreed Chairman of the Audit Committee
audit plon, 31 March 2016
* the audit report issued by the independent Auditor on the
audit of the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the
year ending 31 December 2015, and
* feedback from the Manager
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended

31 December 2015 has been prepared in accordance with the
Large & Medium-sized Companies & Groups {(Accounts &
Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013 (the “Regulations”) As
the Board 15 compnsed entirely of non-executive Directors and
has no employees, many parts of the Regulations, in porticular
those relatng to chief executive officer pay and employee pay,
do not apply and are therefore not disclosed in this report

An ordinary resolution to approve the Directors’ Remuneration
Report will be put to shareholders at the AGM on 24 May 2016
The Company’s Independent Auditor 1s required to audit certain
sections of this report and where such disclosures have been
auvdited, the specific section has been indicated as such The
Auditor's opinion is included in its report on pages 36 to 38

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board's fees were
paid at the following rates Chairman £30,000, Chairman of the
Audit Committee £23,000, and Directors £20,000 There has
been no increase in these fees since the year end

The level of fees paid to the Directors was last reviewed on

18 March 2014 and no increase in fees was proposed The level
of fees has remained unchanged since 13 March 2013 and prior
to that date fees were payable at the following rates Chairman
£31,000, Chairman of the Audit Committee £20,000, and
Directors £20,000 The reviews undertaken in 2013 and 2014
were bosed on infermation provided by the Company's
Manager, Fidelity, and research from third parties and reference
was made to the fees of other similar investment trusts The
Board has not employed remuneration consultants for the year
under review

THE REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Policy 1s subject to a binding vote, in the form
of an ordinary resolution, at every third AGM A binding vote
rmeans that, if it 1s not successful, the Board will be obliged to
revise the policy and seek further shareholder approval at a
General Meeting specially convened for thot purpose The
current policy 1s set out below

The Company’s Articles of Association imit the aggregate fees
payable to each Director to £50,000 per annum Subject to this
overall bhmit, it 1s the Board's policy to determine the level of
Directors’ fees having regard to fees poyable to non-executive
directors in the industry generally, the role that indmvidual
Directors fulfill, the time committed to the Company’s affars and
the responsibilities and potential labihties, both financial and
reputational Other than fees, the Directors are not eligible for
any performance related poy, bonuses, pension related benefits,
share options, long term incentive schemes, or other non-cash
benefits or taxable expenses No other payments are made to
Directors other than reasonable out of pocket expenses which
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have been incurred as a result of attending to the affairs of the
Company The Directors are not entitled to exit payments and
are not provided with any compensation for loss of office

The level of Directors’ fees 1s determined by the whote Board
Directors do not vote on their own fees Levels of fees are
considered in terms of their competitiveness and whether they
are sufficient to attract and retain the standard of Directors
needed to manage the Company successfully The Board review
the Company's Remuneration Policy and the remuneration of the
Board as a whole on an annual basis Reviews are based on
information provided by the Company’s Manager, Fidelity ond
research from third parties and it includes infermation on the
fees of other similar invesiment trusts

No Director has a service contract with the Company New
Directors are provided with a letter of appointment which,
amongst other things, provides that their appoiniment 1s subject
to the Companies Act 2006 and the Company’s Arlicles of
Association Copies of the Directors’ letters of appointment are
avallable at each of the Company’s AGMs and can be obtained
from the Company's registered office

In common with most investment trusts, the Company does not
have a Chief Executive Officer or employees

The Company’s remuneration policy will apply to any new Board
members, who will be paid the equivalent amount of fees as
current Board members

REPORT ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Remuneration Policy was formalised for the first tme at the
AGM held on 14 May 2014 and the next vote will be put to
shareholders in 2017 The Policy has been followed throughout
the year ended 31 December 2015

The Directors’ Remuneration Report 1s subject to approval by
shareholders by way of a non-binding ‘advisory’ resolution at
each AGM In the event that shareholders vote aganst the
resolution, the Board will be required to put its Rermuneration
Pohcy for shareholder approval at the next AGM, regardless of
whether the Remuneration Policy was approved by sharehoiders
within the last three years

Voting at the Company's last AGM

At the AGM held on 4 June 2015, 99 70% of votes were cast i
favour {or gronted discretion to the Chairman of the meeting who
cast them in favour) of the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the
year ended 31 December 2014, 0 29% of votes were cast against
and 0 01% of votes were withhetd At the AGM to be held on

24 May 2016, the votes cast by shareholders on the Directors’
Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2015

will be disclosed on the Company’s pages of the Manager’s
website at www fidelity co uk/its



GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report

Single Total Figure of Remuneration
The single total aggregate Directors’ remuneration for the year
under review was £141,698 (2014 £118,149) Information on
individual Directors’ fees 1s shown below In addition, following

HMRC regulations, the Company is now required 1o disclose
expenses incurred by the Directors in attending to the affairs of
the Company These are considered to be a taxcble benefit and
are disclosed in the table below for the current and pnor year

2016 2015 2014
Taxable Taxable

Projected Fees Benefits' Total Fees Benefits' Total
Remuneration Fees {Avdited) {Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
of Directors (£) (%) (£) (£) (£} (%) (%)
Dawvid Robins 30,000 30,000 - 30,000 30,000 - 30,000
$imon Fraser? - 8,553 - 8,553 20,000 - 20,000
Phihp Kay 20,000 20,000 - 20,000 20,000 - 20,000
Sir Laurence Magnus 23,000 23,000 - 23,000 23,000 - 23,000
David Miller® 7,923 20,000 78 20,078 20,000 149 20,149
Mam: Mizuton* 20,000 20,000 &7 20,067 2,500 - 2,500
Dominic Ziegler! 20,000 20,000 - 20,000 2,500 - 2,500
Total 120,923 141,553 145 141,698 118,000 149 118,149

Retired os a Director on 4 June 2015
Retirng as a Directar on 24 May 2016
Appointed as a Director with effect from 17 November 2014

bR =

Reasonable trovel expenses incurred In attending the affairs of the Company

Directors’ fees are paid monthly in arrears Directors do not have a notice penod to serve if their appointment were to be terminated

Expendrture on Remuneration and Distributions to Shareholders
The table below shows the total amount paid out in remuneration and distnbution to shareholders for the finanaat years to

31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015

Expendityre on Remuneration

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
¥ £

- Aggregate Directors’ Fees 141,698 118,149
Distnbution to Shareholders

- Dwdend payments nil nil
- Shares repurchased i nil

Performance

The Company’s investment objective is to achieve long term capital growth from an actively managed portfolio of secunties primanly
of small and medium sized Japanese companies listed or traded on Japanese stockmarkets The Company’s performance 1s
measyred against the Russell Nomura Mid/Small Cap Index {in stering terms) as this 1s the most approprate in respect of its asset
allocation The graph on page 34 shows performance over seven years 10 31 December 2015
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report

Petformance from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2015 (on o total return basis)

Directors’ Interest in Shares

Although there 1s no requirement for the Directors to held shares in the Company, Directors are encouraged to do so The tables

below show the shores held by Directors 1n the Company All of the Directors’ shareholdings are beneficial

Directors’ Shareholdings (audited)

Ordinary Shares - Director 31 Becember 2015

31 December 2014 Change during year

Dawvid Robins’ 35,000 10,000 25,000
Simon Fraser? n/a 18,000 nil
Philip Xay 12,183 12,183 nil
Sir Laurence Magnus 40,000 40,000 nil
Dawid Miiler 20,000 20,000 nil
Mam Mizuton ml nii nil
Dominic Ziegler ol i il

1 Purchase of shares
? Retired 4 June 2015

Subscription Shares - Director 31 December 2015

Dawvid Robins 2,000

31 December 2014  Change during year

2,000 nil
Simon Fraser’ nfa 3,600 nil
Phulip Kay 2,436 2,436 nil
Sir Laurence Magnus 8,000 8,000 il
Dawvid Miiler 4,000 4,000 rul
Mami Mizuton nil nil nit
Dominic Ziegler nil nil il

1 Retired 4 June 2015
There have been no changes in the Directors’ shareholdings since the year end

On behalf of the

avid Robins
Chairman
31 March 2016
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Statement of

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report
and Financial Statements in accordance with applicable tow and
regulations Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financral statements for each financio! penod Under that low
they hove elected to prepare the Financial Statements in
accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

The Financial Statements are required by law te give a true and
tair view of the state of atfairs of the Company and of the profit
or loss for the penod

In prepanng these Financial Statements, the Directors are
required to

* select sutable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

* make judgements and estmatas that are reasonoble and
prudent,

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the Financial Statements,

* prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basts
unless it 1s Inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue In business, and

* confirm, to the extent possible, that the Financial Statements
are far, balanced and understandable

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that adequate
accounting records are kept which disclose with reasonable
accuracy gt any time the financial position of the Company and
to enable them to ensure that its Financial Statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularnties

Under applicable law and regulations the Directors are also
responsible for prepanng a Strategic Report, a Directors’ Report,
a Corporate Governance Statement and a Directors’
Remuneration Report that comply with that law and those
regulations

GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors have delegated responsibility for the maintenance
and integnty of the corporate and finanaial mformation included
on the Company’s pages of the Manager's website at

www fidelity co uk/its Visitors to the website need to be aware
that legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of the financial stotements may differ from
legislation i their own junisdictions

We confirm that to the best of cur knowledge the Financial
Statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets,
hatikties, financial position and profit or loss of the Company,
and the Strategic Report and Dwectors’ Report include a far
review of the development and performance of the business and
the position of the Company together with a descnption of the
principal nisks and uncertainties it faces We confirm that we
consider the Annual Repont and Financial Statements, taken as a
whole, 1s farr, balanced and understandable and prowides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's
positon and performance, business model and strategy

Approved by the Board on 31 March 2016 ond signed on its
behalf by

Dawvid Robins
Chairman
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FINANCIAL

Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of
Fidelity Japanese Values PLC

Our opinion on the Financial Statements 1s unmodified
In our opinion the Financial Statements

* gwe a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs
as at 31 December 2015 and of its net return for the year
then ended,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with applhicable
loaw and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Compames Act 2006

Who we are reporting to

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken sc that we might
state to the Company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and

the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
repont, or for the opinions we have formed

What we have oudited

Fidelity Japanese Values PLC's Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 comprise the Income Statement, the
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Balance Sheet and the
related Notes

The tinancia! reporting framewerk that has been applied in ther
preparation 1s United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, including FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard
apphcable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’

Overview of our auvdit approach

* Overall matenality £116m which represents 1% of the
Company's het assets, and

+ Key audit nsks were identified as existence and valuation of
investments, existence, completeness and valuation of iong
contracts for difterences (CFDs) and related disclosures,

and completeness and occurrence of investment income

Ouvur assessment of risk
In arrving at our opinions set out m this report, we highlight the following nisks that, in our judgement, had the greatest effect on our audit

Audit risk How we responded to the risk

Existence and valuation of investments Our audit work included, but was not restricted to

The Company's business i1s investing * understanding management's process to safeguard assets,

pnmanly in secunties of small and » obtaining a confirmation from the custodian of the investments they were holding
medium sized Japanese companies at the yearend,

hsted or traded on Japanese stock * testing the reconcihation of the custodian postion to the records maintained by
markets, with a view to achieving long the Company,

term copital growth As a consequence + understanding management’s process to value quoted investments,

of this, the Compeny has significant * agreeing the valuation of 100% of the quoted investments to an independent
exposure to movement in the valuatron source of market pnices, and

of investments, which are the main * confirming investments are actively traded by obtaining monthly trading volumes
drivers of returns, with the investment of the listed investments held at the year-end

portfolic valued at £116m There 1s a nsk
that investments shown in the Balance
Sheet may not exist or may be incorrectly
vatved We identified existence and
valuation of investments as nsks that
required particular audit attention

The Company’s accounting policy on the valuation of investments 1s shown in Note 2
and its disclosures about investment movements are included in Note 9 The Audit
Committee identified valuation, existence and ownership of investments (including
derivatives) as a significant issue in its repert on page 31 where the Committee also
descnibed the action that it has taken to address this

Existence, completeness and valuation Our audit work included, but was not restricted to
of long contracts for differences (CFDs)

« ynderstanding management's process for approving counterparties to enter into
and related disclosures u g 9 P PP g erpartie:

dernvative contracts,

* obtaining confirmatiens from approved counterparties of all CFDs entered into
As a consequence of the Company’s and closed dunng the year and open at the year-end,
investment strategy, the Company has * testing the valuation of 100% of the CFDs by ogreeing the contract price to the
a significant exposure to long CFDs, counterparty’s confirmation and the yearend market price to an independent
hawving a market exposure of £20m source of market prices, and
There is a nisk that CFDs held by the * checking that the market exposures had been correctly calculated
Company may not be recorded, that
they may not exist or may not be
correctly valued We therefore 1dentified
existence, completeness and valuation
of long CFDs as nsks that required
particular audit attention

The Company’s accounting policy on the valuation of CFDs i1s shown in Note 2 and
its disclosures about derrvative movements are included in Note 10 The Audit
Committee also identified the valuation, existence and ownership of investments
{including dernivatives} as a sigmficant 1ssue n its report on page 31, where the
Committee also descnbed the action that it has taken to address this
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FINANCIAL

Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of
Fidelity Japanese Values PLC

Audit risk How we responded to the risk

Completeness and occurrence of Qur audit work included, but was not restnicted to

investment income .
* assessing whether the Company's accounting policy for revenue recogmtion was

in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,

+ obtaining an understanding of the Company’s process for recognising revenue
in accordance with the stated accounting policy,

+ testing whether a sample of income transactions had been recognised in
accordance with the policy,

» for a sample of investments held in the year, obtaining the ex-dwidend dates and
rates for dividends declared dunng the year from an independent source and
agreeing the expected dividend entitlements to those recognised in the Financial
Statements,

* performing cut-off testing of dividend income around the yearend, and

* checking the categorisaton of special dwvidends as either revenue or capital
receipts

The Company measures performance on
a total return basis that includes revenue
and investment income 15 one of the
most sigmficant and matenal balances
in the income Statement We 1dentifred
the completeness and occurrence of
investment income as a nisk that
required particular audit attention

The Company's accounting policy on the recognition of investment income 1s shown
in Note Z and the components of that income are included In Note 3 The Audit
Committee 1dentified recognition of investment income as a significant 1ssue in its
report on page 31, where the Committee also described the action that it has token

to address this

Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope
of our audit

Matenality

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstatement in the
Finanaial Statements that makes 1t probable that the economic
decisions of o reasonably knowledgeable person would be
changed or influenced We use materiality in determining the
nature, imming and extent of our work and 1n evalucting the
results of that work

We determined matenality for the audit of the Financial
Statements as a whole to be £11ém, which 1s 1% of net assets
This benchmark 1s considered the most appropnate because net
assets, which 1s pnmanly composed of the Company’s investment
portfolio, 1s considered to be the key driver of the Company's
total return performance

We use a different level of matenalty, performance materiality,
to dnve the extent of our testing and this was set at 75% of
financial statement matenality We also determine a lower
level of specific matenality for certain areas such as Directors’
remuneration and related party transactions

We determined the threshold at which we will communicate
misstatements 1o the Audit Commuttee to be £58,000 In addition
we will communicate misstatements below that threshold that,
In our view, warrant reporting on qualitative grounds

Overview of the scope of our cudit

A description of the generic scope of an gudit of financial
statements 1s provided on the Financial Reporting Counail’s
website at www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK and Ireland) Our responstbilities
under those standards are further described in the ‘Responsibilities
for the Financial Statements and the audit’ section of our report
We beheve that the audit endence we have obtained is sufficient
and appreopnate to provide a basis for our opinion

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auddors, and
we hove fulfilled our other ethical respensibilities in accordance
with those Ethical Standards

Qur audit approach was based on a thorough understanding
of the Company's business and 1s nsk-bosed The day-to-day
management of the Company’s investment portfolio, the
maintenance of accounting records, custody of investments and
administrative and company secretanal services are outsourced
to third-party service providers Accordingly, our audit work
mcluded

+ obtairing an understanding of, and evaluating, relevant
internai controls ot both the Company and third-party service
providers by cbtaining and evaluating interna! controls
reports on the description, design and operating effectiveness
of controls at both the Company and third party service
providers, and

* substantive testing on significant transactions, balances and
disclosures, the extent of which was based on vanous factors
such as our overall assessment of the control environment and
our evaluation of the design and implementation of controls
and the management of specific risks
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FINANCIAL

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Fidelity Japanese Values PLC

Other reporting required by regulations

Qur opinion on other matters prescrnibed by the Companies
Act 2004 15 unmodified

In our opiion

*+ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, and

* the information given n the Strategic Report and Directors’
Report for the finencial year for which the Financaial
Siatements are prepared 1s consistent with the Finanaial
Statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Comparnies Act 2006 we are required to report to

you if, In our opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not wisited by us, or

+ the Financial Statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with
the accounting records and returns, or

* certain disclosures of Directors” remuneration speatied by
law are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audht

Under the Listing Rules, we are required to review

* the Directors’ statements In relation to going concern and
longer term vtabihty, set out on pages 23 and 13 respectively,
and

*+ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to
the Company's comphance with the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code specified for our review

Under the ISAs (UK and Ireland}, we are required to report

to you if, in our opinion, information in the Annual Report I1s

* materially inconsistent with the information (n the audited
Financial Statements, or

* opparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Company acquired
in the course of performing our audit, or

* otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to report to you if

* we have identfied any Inconsistencies between our
knowledge acquired dunng the audit and the Directors’
stotement that they consider the Annual Report is fair,
balanced and understandable, or

* the Annual Report does not appropnately disclose those
matters that were communicated to the Audit Committee
which we consider should have been disclosed
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We have nothing to report in respect of the above

We also confirm that we do not have anything maternal fo add
or to draw attention to 1n relation to

* the Directors’ confirmation in the Annual Report that they have
carrned cut a robust assessment of the principal risks facing
the Company including those that would threaten its business
mode), future performance, solvency or liquidity,

» the disclosures in the Annual Report that descnbe those risks
and explain how they are being managed or mitigated,

* the Directors’ statement in the Financial Statements about
whether they have considered 1t appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in prepanng them, and
their identification of any matenal uncertainties to the
Company's abilty to continue to do so over a penod of at
least twelve months from the date of approval of the Financial
Statements, and

* the Directors’ explanation in the Annual Report as to how
they have assessed the prospects of the Company, over what
pericd they have done so and why they consider that penod
to be appropnate, and their statement as to whether they
have a reasonable expectatton that the Company will be
able to continue In operation and meet its habslities as they
fall due over the pertod of their assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualfications or assumptions

Responsibilites for the Financial Statements and the audit
What the Directors are responsible for

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibiliies set out on page 35, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the Financial Statements and for being
sabstied thot they give a true and fair view

What we are responsible for

Qur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the
Financial Statements in accordance with apphcoble law and
I1SAs (UK and lreland) Those standards require us to camply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethica! Standards for Auditors

Juhan Bartlett

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

31 March 2016




FINANCIAL

|I1C0me statement for the year ended 31 December 2015

Gains on investments at fair value through profit
or loss

Garns on denvative instruments at fair value through
profit or loss

Income
Investment management fee
Other expenses

Exchange losses on other net assets

Net return/{loss) before finance costs and taxaton
{
Finance costs

Net {loss)/return on ordinary activities
before taxation

Taxation on {less)/return on ordinary activihes
Net (loss)/return on ordinary activities ofter taxation

tor the yedr

{Loss)/return per ordinary share - undiluted
and diluted

Notes

[EL Y

There are no gamns and losses other than those reparted in this Income Statement
The total column of the Income Statement s the profit and loss account of the Company
All revenue and capital items in the above statement denve trom continuing operatons and ne oparations were acquired or discontinued in the year

The Notes on pages 42 to 53 form an integral part of these Financial Statements

2015 2014

revenue  caprtal total  revenue  capital total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- 21,132 21,132 - 1,053 1,053

- 2,717 2,717 - 2,848 2,848
1,728 - 1,728 1,366 - 1,366
(1,130) - {1,130) (954) - (954)
(508) - (508) {(711) - 711)
{22) {762) (784) (26) (589) (615)
468 23,087 23,155 (325) 3,312 2,987
(88) - (88) (77 - {77}
(20y 23,087 23,067 (402) 3312 2,910
(140) - (140) (107 - (107}
(160) 23,087 22,927 (509) 3312 2,803
(014p) 20 24p 20 t0p (0 45p) 291p 24ép
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Note
Year ended 31 December 2015
As at 1 Janvary 2015

Issue of ordinary shares on exercise of
nghts attached to subscription shares 13

Net return/{loss) on ordinary actvihies after
taxation for the year

As at 31 December 2015

Year ended 31 December 2014
As at 1 January 2014

Issue of ordinary shares on exercise of
nghts attached to subscription shares 13

Net return/({loss) on ordinary actvittes after
taxation for the year

As at 31 December 2014

share capital
shore  premwm redemption other capital revenue total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve equity
£'000 £'000 £'000 §'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
28,501 6,741 2,621 57,568 11,766 {14,311) 92,886
54 133 - - - - 187
- - - - 23,087 (160) 22,927
28,555 6,874 2,621 57,568 34,853  (14,471) 116,000
28,489 6,712 2,621 57,568 8,454 (13,802) 90,042
12 29 - - - - 41
- - - - 3,312 {509) 2,803
28,501 6,741 2,621 57,568 11,766 (14,311) 92,886

The Notes on pages 42 to 53 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2015

Company number 2885584

2015 2014
Notes £°000 £000
Fixed assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 9 115,532 82,486
Current assets
Derivative assets at farr value through profit or loss 10 1,056 7,296
Debtors 11 1,063 930
Cash ot bank 220 3176
2,339 11,402
Creditors
Dernvative habilities at fair value through profit or loss 10 (1,117) (139
Creditors 12 {754) {843)
(1,871) (1,002)
Net current assets 468 10,400
Net agssets 116,000 92,886
Capital and reserves
Share capital 13 28,555 28,501
Share premium account 14 6,874 6,741
Capital redemption reserve 14 2621 2,621
Other reserve 14 57,568 57,568
Capital reserve 14 34,853 11,766
Revenue reserve 14 (14,471) (14,311)
Total equity shareholders’ funds 116,000 92,886
Net asset value per ordinary share
Undiluted 15 101 56p 8148p
Diluted 15 99 08p nfa

The Financial Statements on pages 39 to 53 were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2016 and were signed on its
behalf by

David Robins
Chairman

The Notes on pages 42 10 53 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Fidelity Japanese Values PLC 1s an Investment Company incorporated in England and Wales with @ premium listing on the
London Stock Exchange The Company’s registration number 15 2885584, and its registered office 1s Beech Gate, Millfield Lane,
Lower Kingswood, Tadworth, Surrey, KT20 éRP The Company has been approved by HM Revenue & Customs as an Investment
Trust under Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act, 2010 and intends to conduct its affairs so as to continue to be approved

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company has for the first time applied the revised UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice ("UK GAAP”), issued by

the Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”) and these Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland, effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 Jonuary 2015 The Company has early adopted the amendments to FRS 102 Fair value hierarchy disclosures, 1ssued

by the FRC in March 2016 The Financigt Statements have also been prepared in accordance with the revised Stotement of
Recommended Practice Financial Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Yenture Capital Trusts ("SORP”) i1ssued by the
Association of Investment Companies (“AlIC”), in November 2014

As a result of the adoption of the revised UK GAAP and SORP, presentation formats have been amended where appropnate
The Reconciiation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds has been renamed the Stalement of Changes in Equity A Cash Flow
Statement has not been presented The Company 1s exempt from presenting a Cash Flow Statement as a Statement of Changes
in Equity 1s presented and substantially all of the Company’s investments are highly iquid and are carned ot market value

The net return on ordinary actvities after taxation for the year and total shareholders’ funds remain unchanged from what

was reported under the former UK GAAP basis applied in the 2014 Annual Report and the 2014 figures have not required
restatement

a) Basis of accounting - The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost
convention, except for the measurement at farr value of fixed asset investments and denvative assets and liabilities

A resolution proposing the continuation of the Company as an investment trust will be put to shareholders at the AGM on

24 May 2016 The Directors are recommending that shareholders vote in favour of this resolution In accordance with this
recommendation and given that the Company’s assets consist mainly of secunties which are readily realisable and that the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company hos adequate resources to continue for the foreseeable future, the
Directors believe that it 1s appropnate to prepare the Financial Statements on a going concern basis Accordingly the Financial
Statements do not include any adjustments that may anse from a reconstruction or iquidation of the Company Such adjustments
would include expenses of reconstruction or lquidation along with any costs associated with realising the portfolio

b} Segmental reporting - The Directors are of the opinion that the Company 1s engaged in a single segment of business being
investment business

¢) Income - Income from equity investments 1s credited to the Income Statement on the date on which the nght to recewe

the payment 1s estoblished Overseas dividend income includes withhelding tax deducted at source Interest receivable on
short term deposits 15 dealt with on an accruals basts Where the Company has elected to receve its dividends in the form of
additional shares rather than in cash, the amount of the cash dwidend foregone 1s recogmsed 1n the revenue column of the
Income Statement Any excess in the value of the shares received over the amount of the cash dividend foregone 1s recognised
mn the copital column of the Income Statement Derivative income from dividends on long contracts for difference (“CFDs™) is
credited to the revenue column of the Income Statement on the date on which the nght to receive the payment 1s estobhished

d) Special dividends - Special dvidends are treated as a capital receipt or a revenue receipt depending on the facts and
arcumstances of each particular case

e) Expenses - Expenses, including investment management fees, are accounted for on an accruals basis and are charged In
full to the revenue column of the Income Statement

f) Finance costs - Finance costs represent interest paid on long CFDs and are accounted for on an accruals basis using the
effective interest method They are charged m full to the revenve column of the Income Statement

g) Taxation - Deferred taxation 1s recognised in respect of all iming differences that have onginated, but not reversed, at the

Balance Sheet date, where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more, or a right to pay less, tax in the future
have occurred A deferred taxation asset 1s only recognised when it 1s more likely than not that the asset will be recoverable
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

h} Foreign currency - The Directors, having regard to the currency of the Company’s share capital and the predommant
currency in which its investors operate, have determined the functional currency to be UK sterling Transactions denominated
in foreign currencies are translated inte UK sterling at the rate of exchange ruling as at the date of the transaction Assets and
liabihities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the Balance Sheet date All capital gans and
losses, including exchange movements on the translation of toreign currency assets and liabilities, are dealt with in the capital
column of the Income Statement

1) Investments - The portfolic of investments and dernvative instruments 1s managed and its performance 1s evaluated on a farr
value basis in accordance with a documented investment strategy Information about the portfolio 1s provided on this basis to
the Company's Board of Directors Investments are measured at far value with changes in fair value recognised 1n profit or loss,
in accordance with the provisiens of both Section 11 and Section 12 of FRS 102 The fair value of investments 15 initially taken to
be their cost ond 15 subsequently measured as follows

* Investments histed overseas are valued at bid prices, or last market prices, depending on the convention of the exchange on
which they are listed, or otherwise, at fair value based on published price quotations

In accordance with the AIC SORP, the Company charges transaction costs incidental to the purchase or sale of investments
to ‘Gains on investments at fair valve through profit or loss’ in the capital column of the Income Statement These costs are
disclosed in Note 9 below

J) Derivative mstruments - Some of the Company's portfolio exposure to Japonese equities 1s achieved by investment in long
CFDs Long CFDs are measured ot tair value with changes in far value recogrused in profit or loss, in accordance with the

provisions of both Sechion 11 and Section 12 of FRS 102 The fair value of long CFDs 1s measured as follows

* Long CFDs are valued at the diference between the pnce of the shares underlying the contract when the contract was
opened and ther closing price at the valuation date {calculoted in accordance with policy 2{1) above)

k) Caprtal reserve - The following are accounted for in capital reserve

» Gams and losses on the disposal of investments and dernvative instruments,

* Changes In fair valve of the investments and denvative instruments held at the year end,

+ Foreign exchange gains and losses of a capital nature, and

* Dwidends recevable which are capital in nature

As o result of techmcal gutdance 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales in TECH 02/10
Guidance on the determination of reahsed profits and losses 1n the context of distnbutions under the Companes Act 2006,
changes in fair value of investments which are readily convertible to cash, without accepting adverse terms at the Balance Sheet
date, can be treated as realised Capital reserves realised and unrealised are shown in aggregate as ‘capital reserve’ in the

Statement of Changes in Equity and on the Bolance Sheet At the Balance Sheet date all investments held by the Company were
listed on a recognised stock exchange and were considered to be readily convertible to cash

Year Year
ended ended
31122015 3112 2014
£'000 £'000
INCOME
Income from investments at fair value through profit or loss
Cverseas dividends 1,404 1,071
Income {rom derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Dividends on long CFDs 324 295
Total income 1,728 1,366
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year year
ended ended
31122015 31122014
£'000 £'000
| 4 INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FEE
‘ Investment management fee 1130 954
|
| A summory of the terms of the Management Agreement Is given in the Directors’ Report on page 23
year year
ended ended
\ 31122015 31122014
' £000 £'000
5 OTHER EXPENSES
AIC fees 7 6
Custody fees 12 1
Depositary fees’ 14 4
Directors’ expenses 41 38
Directors’ tees? 142 118
Legal and professional fees 48 103
Marketing expenses 77 84
Printing and publication expenses 51 48
Regstrars’ fees 33 26
Subscriphion share 1ssue costs - 193
Sundry other expenses 59 57
Fees payable to the Company’s Independent Auditor for the auvdit of the annual financial
statements 24 3
508 M
' The Depositery was appointed with eftect from 17 July 2014
! Details of the breakdown of Directors’ fees are provided in the Directors Remuneration Repcrt en page 33
year year
ended ended
31122015 3112 2014
£'000 £°000
6 FINANCE COSTS
Interest paid on long CFDs 88 77
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year year
ended ended
31122015 31122014
£'000 £'000
7 TAXATION ON RETURN ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
a) Analysis of taxation charge for the year
Overseas taxation suffered (Note 7b) 140 107

b) Factors affecting the toxotion charge tor the year
The taxation charge for the year s lower than the standard rate of UK corporation tax of 20 25% (2014 21 49%) A reconciligtion
of the toxation charge based on the standard rate of UK corporation tax to the actual taxchon charge is shown below

year year

ended ended

31122015 31122014

£'000 £°000

Net return on ordinary activiies before taxation 23,067 2,910
Net return on ordinary activities before taxation multiphed by the standard rate of UK corperation

tax of 20 25% (2014 21 49%) 4,671 626

Eftects ot

Gains on investments not taxable’ {4,675) (712)

Income not included for taxation purposes (285) (230)

Increase n excess expenses for the year 289 316

Overseas taxation 140 107

Taxaton charge for the year (Note 7a) 140 107

' Investment trust companies are exempt from UK corporation tax on capital goins if they meet the HM Revenue & Customs cnierla set out in Section 1159 of

the Corporation Tax At 2010

¢) Deferred taxation
A deferred taxation asset of £3,601,000 (2014 £3,901,000), in respect of excess expenses of £20,005,000 (2014 £18,578,000),
has not been recogmsed as 1t 1s unlikely that there will be sufficient future taxable profits to utilise these expenses

year year
ended ended
31122015 31122014
revenue capital total revenue capital total
8 (LOSS)/RETURN PER ORDINARY SHARE
= UNDILUTED AND DILUTED
Net (loss)/return per ordinary
share - pence (0 14) 2024 2010 (0 45) 29 244
Net (loss)/return on crcnary
activities after taxation for the
year - £'000 (160) 23,087 22927 (509) 3,312 2,803

The (loss)/return per ordinary share 1s based on 114,076,562 ordinary shares (2014 113,966,379} being the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue dunng the year There are no dilvted (losses)/returns for the year (2014 none) as in both
years the average ordinary share price was below the exercise price of the subscription shares n 1ssue
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2015 2014
£'000 £'000
9 INVESTMENTS
Investments at tair value through profit or loss
Listed overseas investments 115,532 82,486
Opening fair value of investments
Opening book cost 75,964 80,293
Opening investment holding gains 6,522 3,738
82,486 84,031
Movements in the year
Purchases at cost 165,380 64,119
Sales - proceeds (153,466) (66,717)
Sales - realised gans/{losses) on sales 12,378 (1.731)
Movement in investment holding goins in the year 8,754 2,784
Closing fair value of investments 115,532 82,484
Closing book cost 100,256 75,964
Closing investment holding gains 15,276 6,522
Closing four value of iInvestments 115,532 82,486
year year
ended ended
3112 2015 3112 2014
£'000 £000
Gains on Investments at fair value through profit or loss for the year
Realised gans/{losses) on sales of investments 12,378 {1,731)
Investment holding gams 8,754 2,784
21,132 1,053
Costs of investment transactions for the year
Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition and disposal of investments, which are included
within gains on investments above, were as follows
Purchase transaction costs 97 61
Sales transaction costs 93 52
190 113

The porttolic turnover rate for the year ended 31 December 2015 was 128 7% (2014 56 7%)
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205 2014
portfolio portiolio
fair value exposure tar value exposure
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
10 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Long CFDs - assets 1,056 5,426 7,296 28,109
Long CFDs - habilities {1,117} 13,294 (139) 2,954
(61) 19,720 7,157 31,063
year year
ended ended
31122015 31122014
£'000 £'000
Gains on denvotive instruments at tarr vatue through proht or loss
Gains on long CFD positions closed 9,935 1,533
Movement 1n investment holding (losses)/gains on long CFDs (7,218) 1,315
2,717 2,848
2015 2014
£°000 £'000
11 DEBTORS
Secunties sold for future settlement 752 375
Amount recewvable on ordinary shares 1ssued - 1
Accrued income 243 187
Other debtors 68 367
1,063 930
2015 2014
£'000 £000
12 CREDITORS
Securihes purchased for future settlement 255 404
Other creditors 499 459
754 863
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2015 2014
number number
of shares £°000 of shares £'000
13 SHARE CAPITAL

Issved, allotted and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 25 pence each
Beginning of the year 114,002,375 28,50 113,954,834 28,489
Issue of ordinary shares on the conversion of nghts attached
to subscnption shares 215,981 54 47,541 12
End of the year 114,218,356 28,555 114,002,375 28,501
Subscniption shares of 0 001 pence each
Beginning of the year 22,743,320 - - -
Bonus i1ssue of subscnption shares - - 22,790,861 -
Exercise of nghts attached to subscription shares and
conversion into ordinary shares (215,981) - {(47,541) -
End of the year 22,527,339 - 22,743,320 -
Total share capital 28,555 28,501

A bonus i1ssue of subscnption shares to ordinary shareholders took place on 27 Avgust 2014 and was on the basis of one
subscnption share for every five ordinary shares held Each subscription share gives the holder the nght, but not the obligation, on
the last business day of each month to subscnbe for one ordinary share upon payment of the subscription pnce of 86 50 pence

The final date to exercise these nghts is 29 Apnl 2016 After 29 Apnl 20186, the Company will appoint a trustee who wall exercise
any nghts remaining that have not been exercised by shareholders, providing that by doing so a profit can be realised To reabse
a profit, the sale proceeds from selling the resuling ordimary shares in the market would need to be n excess of the 86 50 pence
per share cost of exercising the nghts, plus any related expenses and fees Any resulting profit will be paid to the holders of those
outstanding subscnption shares

14 RESERVES

The share premium account represents the amount by which the proceeds from the issue of ordinary shares, on the exercise
of nghts attached to subscrption shares, exceeds the nominal value of those ordinary shares It cannot be used to fund share
repurchases and it 1s not distnbutable by way of dvidend

The capital redemption reserve maintains the equity share capita! of the Company and represents the nominal value of shares
repurchased and cancelled It cannot be used to fund share repurchases and 1t is not distributable by way of dvidend

The other reserve was created in 1999 when the share premium account ot that tme was concelled It can be used to fund share
repurchases

The capital reserve reflects realised gains or osses on investments and dervatives sold, unrealised increases and decreases in
the fair value of investments and denvatives held and other income and costs recognised in the capital column of the Income
Statement It can be used to fund share repurchases and 1t 1s distnbutable by woy of dwvidend The Board has no current mtention
{o pay dividends out of this reserve

The revenue reserve represents the retained revenue losses recogmised in the revenue column of the Income Statement It could
be distnbuted by way of dividend if it were not in deheit
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NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

16

The undiluted net asset value per ordinary share 1s based on net assets of £116,000,000 (2014 £92,886,000) and on 114,218,356
(2014 114,002,375) ordinary shares, being the number of ordinary shares in 1ssue at the year end

The diluted net asset value per ordinary share 1s calculated on the basis of what the finoncial position would have been if all
the nghts attaching to the 22,527,339 outstanding subscnption shares at 31 December 2015 had been exercised on that date
This basis of calculation 1s in accordance with guidelines laid down by the Association of Investment Companies Undiluted and
diluted net asset values per ordinary share are provided to the London Stock Exchange on a daly basis There was no dilution
of the net asset value per ordmary share at 31 December 2014 because the net asset value per ordinary share was below the
86 50 pence per share exercise pnce of the subscriphion shares in 1ssue

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

MANAGEMENT OF RISK

The general nsk analysis undertaken by the Board and its overall policy appreach te nsk management are set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 12 and 13 This note refers to the identification, measurement and management of nsks potentially
affecting the value of financial instruments

The Company’s firancial instruments comprise

* Equity shares held in accordance with the Company’s investment objective and policies,
« Denvative instruments which comprise of long CFDs, and

* Caosh, iqud resources and short term debtors and creditors that arise from s operations

The nsks identified ansing from the Company’s financial instruments are market price nsk (which comprises interest rate nsk,
toreign currency nsk and other pnice nisk), iquidity nsk, counterparty risk, credit nsk and denvative mstruments rsk The Board
reviews and agrees polictes for managing each of these nsks, which are summansed below These policies have remained
unchanged since the beginning of the accounting pernod

Market price nsk

Interest rate nisk

The Company finances its operations through share capital and its retained reserves In addition, the Company has a geared
exposure 1o Japanese equities through the use of long CFDs which incur funding costs and provide collateral in yen The
Company 1s, therefore, exposed to financial nsk as a result of increases In yen interest rates

Interest rate nisk profile
The values of the Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to movements In interest rates are shown below

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Exposure to financial instruments that bear interest
Long CFDs - portfolio exposure less fair value 19,781 23,906
Less exposure to financial instruments that earn interest
Cash at bank (220) (3.176)
Net exposure to financial instruments that bear interest 19,561 20,730
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency nsk

The Company’s net return on orcdinary activities ofter taxation for the year and net assets are afiected by foreign exchange
maovements because the Company has income, assets and habilibes which are denominated in yen, whereas, the Company's
base currency 1s UK sterling The Company may also be subject to short term exposure from exchange rate movements, for
example, between the date when an investment 1s bought or sold and the date when settlement of the transaction occurs

The Company does not hedge the UK sterling value of investments or other assets priced i yen by the use of dervative
instruments Long CFDs are held for geanng purposes

Three principal areas have been identified where foreign currency nisk could impact the Company
* Movements In exchange rates affecting the value of iInvestments and fong CFDs,

* Movements in exchange rates offeciing short term timing differences, and

* Movements in exchange rates affecting income recewved

|
\ Currency exposure of financial assets

‘ The currency exposure profile of the Company’s financial assets 1s shown below
|

2015
investments portfolo
at fair value exposure
through profit through short term
or loss long CFDs debtors cash total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°060
Financial assets hefd in yen 115,532 19,720 995 218 136,465
2014
investments portfolio
at farr value exposure
through profit through short term
or loss long CFDs debtors cash total
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets held in yen 82,486 31,063 844 3,169 117,562

B0 Fidelity Japanese Values PLC Annual Report 2015







FINANCIAL

Notes to the Financial Statements

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Currency exposure of financial habilhes

The Company’s financ:al iabilites compnse the geanng effect of the long CFDs held, which 1s the portfoho exposure to the
mvestments underlying the long CFDs less the fair value of those long CFDs, and other short term creditors The currency profile
of these financial ligbilities 1s shown below

2015
gearnng
effect of
exposure
te long short term
CFDs creditors total
£°000 £'000 £000
Financial habtlities held in yen 19,781 255 20,036
2014
gearing
elfect of
exposure
to long short term
CFDs creditors total
£°000 £'000 £000
Financial labibes held in yen 23,906 405 24 311

Other pnice nisk

Other price nsk anses mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments owned by the Company it represents
the potential loss the Company may suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements The Manager

15 responsible for actively monitonng the existing portfolio, which 1s selected in accordance with the overall asset allocation
parameters described obove, and the Manager seeks to ensure that indmdual stocks also meet an acceptable nsk/reward
profile

Liquidity nisk
The Company’s assets mainly compnse readily realisable secunties, which can be sold easily to meet funding commitments 1f
necessary Short term flexibiity 1s achieved by the use of overdraft facilities as required

Counterparty nisk

All secunities and dervative instruments are transacted with brokers and carry the risk that the counterparty to a transaction may
not meet its inancial obligations In accordance with the nsk management process which the Manager employs, the Manager
will seek to mimimise such nsk by only entering into transactions with counterparties which t believes have an adequate credit
rating, by ensunng that formal legal agreements covening the terms of the contract are entered inte tn advance and through
adopting a counterparty nsk framework which measures, monitors and manages counterparty nsk through the use of internal
and external credit agency ratings and evaluates denvative instrument credit nisk exposure

For Qver The Counter ("OTC”) denvalive transoctions, in accordance with the terms of International Swap Dealers Association
("ISDA"} market standard denvative contracts, collateral 1s used to reduce the nsk of both parties to the contract Collateral

1s monaged on a daily basis for all relevant transactions At 31 December 2015, £92,000 (2014 £7,914,000) wos held in
government bonds on behalf of the Company, in a segregated collateral account, to reduce the exposure to counterparty risk
of the Company

Credit nsk

Investments may be adversely affected if any of the institutions with which money 1s deposited suffers insolvency or other financial
difficulies All transactions are camed out with a large number of brokers and are settled on a delivery versus payment basis
and limits are set by the Manager on the amount that moy be due from any one broker All security transactions are through
brokers which have been approved as an occeptable counterparty This approval 1s reviewed on an ongoing basis At the year
end, the exposure to credit nsk includes outstanding secunties transactions, the fair value of long CFDs and cash at bank
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Dernvative instruments nsk

The nsks and nsk management processes which result from the use of denvative instruments are included within the other risk
categones disciosed previously Denvative instruments are used by the Manoger to goin unfunded long exposure to equity
markets, sectors or single stocks “Unfunded” exposure 1s exposure gained without an inmial outflow of capital The nsk and
performance contribution of these instruments to the Company’s portfolio 1s overseen by the Manager's specialist denvative
instruments team which draws on over forty years of specialist expenence n denvative risk management This team uses
portfolio nsk assessment tools o advise on portfolio construction

RISK SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
Risk sensitivity analysts 1s used by the Manager to measure the Company’s exposure o nsks

Interest rate nisk sensitivity analysis

If interest rates had increased by 0 25% and the Company’s net exposure to financial instruments that bear interest at 31 December
2015 had been held threughout the year, with all ether vanables remaining constant, net return on ordinary actwvities after
taxation for the year and net assets would have decreased by £49,000 {2014 £52,000) A decrease in interest rates by D 25%
would have had an equal but opposite effect

Foreign currency nsk sensiivity analysis

if the UK sterling exchange rate had strengthened against the yen by 10% at 31 December 2015, with all other vanables
remaining constant, net return on ordinary octviies after taxation for the year and net assets would have decreased by
£10,584,000 (2014 £8,477,000) A 10% weckening of the UK sterling exchange rate agains! the yen would hove increased net
return on ordinary activies afler foxation for the year and net assets by £12,936,000 {2014 £10,361,000)

Other price nsk sensiivity analysis

Changes in market prices other than those ansing from interest rate nsk or foreign currency nsk may also atfect the value of the
Company’'s net assets and its total return on ordinary activities Detanls of how the Board sets nsk parameters and performance
objectives can be found in the Strategic Report on poges 12 ond 13

Investments exposure sensitivity analysis

An increase of 10% in the pnce of shares held os investments at 31 December 2015 would have increased net return on ordinary
activities after taxation for the year and net assets by £11,553,000 (2014 £8,249,000) A decrease of 10% would have had an
equal but ocpposite effect

Denvatives instruments exposure sensitivity analysis

The Company also invests 1n long CFDs to gain exposure to the equity markets An increase of 10% in the price of shares
underlying the long CFDs at 31 December 2015 would have increased net return on ordinary activities after taxation for the
year and net assets by £1,972,000 (2014 £3,106,000) A decrease of 10% would have had an equal but opposite effect
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continved

17

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The Financial Reporting Council defines a fair value hierarchy that classiies financial instruments measured at farr value at one
of three levels, according to the relative reliability of the inputs used to measure therr fair valye

Classification Valued by reference to

Level 1 The unadjusted quoted pnice in an active market for identical assets or habilities that the
entity can access at the measurement dote

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted pnces included within Level 1 that are observable (1 e developed
using market data) for the osset or lability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 inputs are unobservable (1 e for which market data in unavailable) for the asset or habulity

The table below sets out the far value hierarchy of the Company’s financial instruments held at fair value on the Balance Sheet

2015 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
£°000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 <000

Financial instruments held
at tair value
Fixed assets - investments in
listed equities 115,532 - 115,532 82,486 - 82,486
Denvative assets - long CFDs - 1,056 1,056 - 7,296 7,296
Denvative llabilities - long CFDs - (1,117) (1,117 - (139) (139)

115,532 (61) 115,471 82,486 7,157 89,643

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

18

The Company does not have any extemally imposed capita! requirements The capital of the Company comprises its gearing,
which 1s managed by the use of long CFDs, and its 1ssued share capital and reserves, as disclosed on the Balance Sheet above
Capital 1s managed in accordance with the Company’s investment policy and in pursuit of its investment objective, both of which
are detailed in the Strategic Report on page 11 The prnncipol nsks facing the Company and their mancgement are disclosed in
the Strategic Report on pages 12 and 13 and in Note 16 above

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has identified the Directors as related parties Key management compensation paid was £155,000

{2014 £130,000) This includes fees and travel expenses paid to the Directors and £13,000 (2014 £12,000) of Employer's
National Insurance contnbutions Detalls of Directors’ remuneration and their interests 1n the shares of the Company are
disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 33 and 34

Fidelty Japonese Values PLC Annual Repert 2015
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Notice of Meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the AGM of Fidelity Japanese Values
PLC will be held at 25 Carnon Street, London EC4M 5TA, on 24
May 2016 ai 12 noon for the following purposes

1 To receve and adopt the Annual Report and Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

2 Tore-elect Mr Philip Kay as a Director

3 To re-elect Sir Laurence Magnus as a Director
4 To re-elect Ms Mami Mizuton as a Director

5 To re-elect Mr David Robins as a Director

6 To re-elect Mr Deminic Ziegler as a Director

7 To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report (excluding the
section headed The Remuneration Policy set out on page 32)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

8 To appoint Ernst & Young LLP as Auditor of the Company to
hold office until the conclusion of the next general meeting at
which financial statements are laid before the Company

9 To authonise the Directors to determine the Auditor's
remuneration

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions of
which Resolutions 10 and 11 will be proposed as ordinary
resolutions ond Resolutions 12 and 13 as special resolutions

Continvation vote
10 To approve that the Company continues to carry on business
as an nvestment tryst

Authorty to allot shares and dis-applicotion of pre-emption
rights

Resolutions 11 and 12 will, f approved, cuthorise the Directors

to allot a limited number of new ordinary shares {or sell any
ordinary shares which the Company elects to hold in Treasury)

for cash wathout first offenng such shares to existing ordinary
shareholders pro rata to their existing holdings The imit set by
the Board 1s 5% of the number of ordinary shares of the Company
inissue on 31 March 2016 The Directors will only 1ssue new
shares, or dispose of ordinary shares held in Treasury, under this
authonty to take advantage of opportunities in the market as they
anse and only if they believe it 15 advantageous to the Company's
shareholders to do so Any ordinary shares held in Treasury would
only be re4ssued at a premium to net asset value per share

11 THAT the Directors be and they are hereby generally and
unconditionally authonsed in accordance with Section 551 of
the Companies Act 2006 {the "Act”) to exercise all the powers
of the Company to allot shares relevant secunties {as defined
in that sectien) up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£1,422,479 (approximately 5% of the aggregate norunal
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amount of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company
as at 31 March 2016) and so that the Directors may impose
any hrts or restrichions and make any arrangements which
they consider necessary or approprate to deal with Treasury
shares, fractional entitlements, record dates, legal, regutatory
or practical problems i, or under the laws of, any temitory or
any other matter, such authority to expire at the conclusion of
the next AGM of the Company or the date 15 months after the
passing of this resclution, whichever 1s the earlier, but so that
this authonty shall allow the Company to make offers or
agreements before the expiry of this authonty which would or
rmight require relevant secunties to be allotted after such
expiry as if the authonty conferred by this resolution had not
expired

12 THAT, subject to the passing of Resolution 11, the Directors be
and they are hereby authonsed, pursuant to Sechons 570-573
of the Act to allot equity secunties (as defined in Section 540
of that Act) for cash pursuant to the authonty given by the said
Resclution 11 and/or to sell ordinary shares held by the
Compony as Treasury shares for cash, as if Section 561 of that
Act did not apply to any such allotment or sale, provided that
this power shall be hmited

0} tothe alloiment of equity secunties or sole of Treasury
shares up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,422,479
(opproximately 5% of the aggregate nominal amount of
the 1ssued share capital of the Company as at 31 March
2016), and

b) by the condition thot allotments of equity secunhies or
sales of Treasury shares may only be made pursuant to
this authority at a prnce of not less than the net asset volue
per share,

and this power shall expire at the conclusion of the next AGM
of the Company or the date 15 months after the passing of
this resolution, whichever 1s the earlier, save that this authonty
shall allow the Company to make offers or agreements before
the expiry of this authonty, and the Directors may allot equity
secunties 1n relation to such an offer or agreement as if the
authonty conferred by this resolution had not expired

Authority to repurchase shares

Resolution 13 15 o special resolution which, If approved, will
renew the Company’s authonty to purchase its ordinary shares
nissve (excduding Treasury shares) on 31 March 2016 for
immediate cancellation or for retention as Treasury shares, at
the determination of the Bourd Once shares are held in Treasury,
the Directors may only dispose of them in accordance with the
relevant legislation by subsequently selling the shares for cash
or cancelling the shares Purchases of ordinary shares will be
made at the discretion of the Board and within guidelines set
from time to ime by the Board and in the light of prevading
market condiions Purchases will only be made in the market at
pnces below the prevailing net asset value per share, thereby
resulting in an increase in the net asset value per share







13 THAT the Company be and i1s hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised in accordance with Section 701 of
the Companies Act 20046 (the “Act”) to make market
purchases {within the meaning of Sectton 693 of the Act) of
ordinary shares of 25p each in the capital of the Company
(the “ordinary shares”) prowided that

a) the maximum number of shares hereby authonsed to be
purchased shall be 17,058,373 ordinary shares,

b) the mintmum price which may be paid for an ordingry
share 1s 25p,

c) the maximum price {excluding expenses) which may be
paid for a share is the higher of

{1) an amount equal to 105% of the average of the
middle market quotations for a share taken from the
London Stock Exchange Official List for the five
business days immediately preceding the day on
which the share 15 purchased, and

{n) the higher of the pnce quoted for the last ndependent
trade and the highest current independent bid as
stipuiated by Articte 5(1) of Commussion Reguiation
(EC) 22 December 2003 implementing the Market
Abuse Directive as regards exemptions for buyboack
programmes and stabilisation of financial instruments
(no 2233/2003),

d) the authonty hereby conferred shall expire at the
conclusion of the next AGM of the Company unless such
authonty is renewed pnior 1o such tme, and

e) the Company may make a contract to purchase shares
under the authonty hereby conferred pnor o the expiry of
such authonty which will or moy be executed wholly or
partly after the expiration of such authonty and may make
a purchase of shares pursuant to any such contract

By Order of the Board

FIL Investments International
Secretary

31 March 2016
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Notice of Meeting

Notes

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the AGM
may appoint @ proxy or proxies to attend and to speak and vote
instead of him A member may appoint more than one proxy in
reiation to the AGM provided that each proxy s appointed to exercise
the rights attached to a different share or shares held by that
member A proxy need not be a member of the Company

A Form of Proxy 1s enclosed and must be returned to the Registrar at
the address on the form to arrive not later than 12 noon on 20 May
2016 Completion and return of the form of proxy will not prevent a
shareholder from subsequently attending the meeting and voting in
person If they so wish

To be efiective, the instrument appointing a proxy, and any power of
attorney or other authority under which it 1s signed {or a copy of any
such authonty certiied notanally or in some other way approved by
the Directors), must be depostted with the Company’s Regstrar,
Capita Asset Services, PXS1, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, Kent BR3 4ZF not less than 48 hours betore the time for
holding the meeting or adjourned meeting or, In the case of a poll
taken more than 48 hours after it 1s demanded, not less than 24 hours
before the time appointed for the taking of the pali at which it 1s to be
used

In tha case of jount holders, the vote of the senor who tenders the
vote shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other jomt
holders and for this purpose, serwcrnity shall be determined by the
arder in which the names stand in the Regster of Members

Te appoint a proxy or to give of amend an instructon to ¢ previously
appointed proxy via the CREST system, the CREST message must be
receved by the 1ssuer’s agent RA1Q by 12 noon on 20 May 2016 For
this purpose, the ime of recetpt will be taken to be the ime (as
determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST
Applhications Host) from which the 1ssver s agent is able to retrieve the
message After this urne any change of instructions to o proxy
appointed through CREST should be commumicated to the proxy by
other means CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored
memkbers and these CREST Members who have apponted voting
service provider(s) should contact thewr CREST sponsor or veting
service provider(s) for assistance with appointing proxies via CREST
For further information on CREST procedures, imitahons and systems
bmings please refer to the CREST Manual We may treat as invaiid a
proxy appointment sent by CREST 1n the circumstances set aut 1n
Regulation 35(5%a) of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001
In any case your proxy form must be received by the Company s
Reqsstrars no later than 12 noon on 20 May 2016

All members are entitied to attend and vote ot the AGM and ask
questions The nght ta vote at the meeting will be determined by
reference to the Register of Members as at 5 30pm on 20 May 2014

Any person fo whom this notice 1S sent who 15 0 person nominated
under Sectien 146 of the Compames Act 2006 to enjoy information
nghts {a “Nominated Person”) may, under an agreement between
fum and the member by whom he was nominated, have a nght to ke
appointed (or to have someone else appontad) as a proxy for the
meeting f a Nominated Person has no such proxy appointment night
or does not wish to exercise i, he may, under any such agreement,
have a nght to gve instructions to the member as to the exercise of
voting nghts The statement of the nghts of members in refation to the
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Notice of Meeting

appointment of proxies in Nete 2 above does not apply to Nominated
Persons The nght described in that paragraph can only be exercised
by members of the Cempany

8 It the Chorrman, as o result of any proxy appontments, is given

discretion as to how tha votes which are the subject of those proxies
are cast and the voting nghts in respect of those discretionary proxies,
when added to the interests in the Company’s securities already held
by the Chawrman, result in the Chairman holding such number of
voting nghts that he has o notifiable obligation under the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules, the Charrman will make the necessary
notifications to the Company and the Financial Conduct Authority As
a result, any member holding 3% or mere of the vobing nghts in the
Company who grants the Charrman o discretionary proxy in respect
of some or all of these vohing nghts and so would otherwise hava a
netification obhgation under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules,
need not make separate notfication to the Company and the
Financial Conduct Authonty

9 Pursuont to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Secunties Ragulations

2001, the Company has specified that to be entitled to attend and
vote at the AGM (and for the purpese of determining the number of
votes they may cast), members must be entered on the register of
members by 5 30pm on 20 May 2016 If the meeting 15 adjourned
then, to be so entitled, members must be entered on the Register of
Members at 5 30pm on the day two days before the time fixed for the
adjourned meeting, or, If the Company gives notice of the adjourned
meeting, ot any other ime specified in thot notice

10 As at 31 March 2014 (the latest practicable date pnor to the
publication of this document) the Company s 1ssued share capital
consisted of 113,798,356 ordinary shares carrying one vole each
Therefore, the total number of voting nghts in the Compary as ot
31 March 2016 was 113,798,356 As at 31 Morch 2016, there wera no
shares held in Treasury by the Company

11 Any corporation which 1s a member can appoint one or more
corporate representatives who may exercise on ds behalf all of its
powers as a member provided that they do not do so in relation to
the some shares

12 Shareholders and any proxies or representatives they appoint
understand that by attending the meeting they are expressly agreeng
that they are willing to receve any communtcations, including
communications relating to the Company’s secunties, made at the
meeting

13 It s possible that, pursuant to requests made by members of the
Company under Section 527 of the Compames Act 2006, the
Company may be required to publish on ts website a statement
setting out any matter reloting to the audit of the Company s accounts
{including the Auditer’s report and the conduct of the audit) that are
to be laid before the AGM or any circumstance connected with an
Auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous
meeting at which the Annual Repert and Financial Statements were
laid The Company may not require the shareholders requesting any
such website publication te pay its expenses In complying with such
requests Where the Company 15 required to place a statement on a
website under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, it must forward
the statement to the Company’s Auditor not later than the time when 1t
makes the siotement availlobie on the website The business which
may be dealt with at the AGM includes any statement that the
Company has been required under Section 527 of the Comparies Act
2006 to publish on its website
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14 No Duector has a service contract with the Company

15 A copy of this notice and other mformation required by Section 311A
of the Compaomes Act 2006 s published on the Company's website at
www fidelity co uk/its

Note Please see the Shareholder Information section on pages 58 and 59
for contact details if you have any quenes Please note that shareholders
may not use any electronic address provided in either this notice or any
reloted documents (including the Proxy Form) to communticate with the
Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated
Shareholders may not use any telephone number set out In this document
for the purpose of ledging instructions for the AGM Similarly the
Company s pages of the Manager's website at www fidelity co uk/its may
not be used to send documents or instruchians far the AGM

Registered Office Beech Gate, Millfield Lane, Lower Kingswood,
Tadworth, Surrey K720 6RP
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Financial Calendar

The key dates in the Company’s calendar are:

31 December 2015 - financial year end

31 March 2016 - announcement of results for the year ending 31 December 2015

April 2016 - publication of this report

24 May 2016 - AGM

30 June 2016 - Half-Year end

July/August 2016 - announcement of Half-Yearly results to 30 June 2016

August 2016 - publication of Half-Yearly report

Fidelty Japanese Values PLC Annual Report 2015
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Shareholder Information

INVESTING IN FIDELITY JAPANESE VALUES PLC

As hidelty Japanese Values PLC 1s a company listed on the
London Stock Exchange you ¢an buy its shares through a
stockbroker, share shop or bank

Fidelity also offers a range of options, so that you can invest in a
way that 1s best for you Details of how to invest can be found on
Fidelty's website at www fidelity co uk/its

CONTACT INFORMATION
Private investors call free to 0800 41 41 10, $am to épm, Monday
to Saturday

Financial advisers call free to 0800 41 41 81, 8am to 6pm,
Monday to Friday www fidelity co uk/its

Existing shareholders who have a speafic query regarding their
helding or need to provide updated information, for example a
change of address, should contact the appropnate administrator

Holders of ordinary shares

Capita Asset Services, Registrar to Fidehty European Values PLC,
The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU
Telephone 0871 644 0300 (calls cost 12p per minute plus your
phone company's access charge if you are outside the Umited
Kingdom, please call +44 371 664 0300 Calls outside the United
Kingdom will be charged at the applicable international rate
unes are open 900 am-5 30 pm, Monday to Fnday excluding
public holidays in Englond and Wales)

emall shareholderenquines@capita co uk

Details of indmidual shoreholdings and other information
can alse be obtained from the Registrar’s website at
www capitaassetservices com

Fidelity Share Picn investors

Fidelity nvestment Trust Share Plan, PO Box 12062, Mellon House,
Ingrave Road, Brentwood, Essex CM14 9LX Telephone 0845 358
1107 (calis to this number are charged at 3 95p per minute from a
BT londline dependent on the tanff Other telephone service
providers’ costs may vary }

Fdelity 1SA investors

Fidelity, using the freephone numbers given above, or by wnting
to UK Customer Service, Fidelity Intemational, Oakhill House,
130 Tonbndge Road, Hildenborough, Tonbridge, Kent TN11 9DZ

General enquines

FIL Investments International, Investment Trusts, Beech Gate,
Milifield Lane, Lower Kingswood, Tadworth, Surrey K120 6RP
Telephone 01732 361144

Website www fidelty co uk/its
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Online Shareholder Services - Share Portal

Through the Registrar's website at www capitashareportal com,
shareholders are able to manage their shareholding online by
registering for the Share Portal, a free, secure, online access to
your shareholding

Faailities include

Account Enquiry Allows shareholders to access their personal
shareholding, including share transaction history, dwdend
payment history and to obtain an up-to-date shareholding
valuation

Amendment of Standing Data Allows shareholders fo change
therr registered postal address and add, change or delete
dividend mandate instructions Shareholders can also download
forms such as change of address, stock transfer and dividend
mandate forms as well as buy and sell shares in the Company

Should you have any quenes in respect of the above facilities,
please contact the Capita Share Portal helpline on 0871 664 0300
{calls cost 12p per minute plus your phone company's access
charge If you are outside the United Kingdom, please call

+44 371 664 0300 Calls oviside the United Kingdom waill be
charged at the applicable international rate Lines are open

900 am-5 30 pm, Monday to Fnday exduding public hohdays in
England and Wales) or by email at shareportal@capita co uk

Capita Share Dealing Services

You can make use of a low cost share dealing service provided by
Capita Asset Services to buy or sell shares Further information 1s
available at www copitadeal com, or by telephomng 0371 664 0445
{calis are charged ot the standard geographic rate and will vary
by prowider Calls outside the Umited Kingdom will be charged

at the applicable international rate We are open between

8 00 am-4 30 pm, Monday to Fnday excluding public holidays

n England and Wales) The Capita Share Decling Services also
allows you to deal in the shares of other companies for which
Capita acts as Registrar, provided you are already a shareholder
n the relevant company, and that company offers the Share Deal
facility to its shareholders

ShareGift

You may donate your shares to chanty free of charge through
ShareGift Further details are available at www sharegift org uk or
by telephoning 020 7930 5737

KEEPING YOU UPDATED

if you hold Fidelity Japanese Values PLC shares m a Fidelity 1SA,
you will receve a yearly report detailing all of your transactions and
the value of your shares Investors with the Fidelity Investment Trust
Share Plan will receive statements and valuations twice o year




MANAGER AND ADVISORS

Alternative Investment Fund Manager
(AlIFM/the Manager}

FIL Investment Services (UK) Limited
Qakhill House

130 Tonbrdge Road

Hildenborough

Tenbndge

Kent

TN11 9DZ

Portfolic Manager, Secretary and
Registered Office

FIL Investments International

Beech Gate

Millfield Lane

Lower Kingswood

Tadworth

Surrey

KT20 6RP

PRICE INFORMATION

The share pnce of the ordinary shares 1s published daily in the
Financial Times under the heading “Investment Companies” and
in The Times, The Daily Telegraph and The Independent and 1s

also avaitable at www fidelity co uk/its

The current price information can also be obtained by telephoning
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Shareholder Information

Independent Auditor
Grant Thornton UK LLP
Chartered Accountants and

Registered Auditor
30 Finsbury Square
London
EC2P 2YU
Lawyer
Charles Russell Speechlys LLP
6 New Street Square
London
EC4A 31X
Banker and Custodian
JPMorgan Chase Bank (London Branch)
125 London Wall
Londen
EC2Y 5A)
CAPITAL GAINS TAX

Dapositary

JP Morgen Europe Limited
25 Bank Street

London

E14 5IP

Financial Adviser and Stockbroker
Canaccord Genuity Ltd

88 Wood Street

Loendon

EC4V 7TQR

Registrar

Capito Asset Services
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent

BR3 4TU

All UK indmduals under present legislation are permitted to
have £11,100 of capital gains in the current tax year 2015/2016
(201472015 £11,000) before beng liable for capital gains tax

Capital gains tax 1s charged of 18% and 28% dependent on the
total amount of taxable income From & Apnl 2016, this will be cut

Fidelity on 0800 41 41 10 {freephone) or FT Citylime on 0905 817
1690 {voice activated service - all calls charged at 40 pence per
minute on a per second basis from a BT landine Charges from
other telephone networks may vary) The Reuters code for Fidelity
Japanese Values PLC 1s FIV L, the SEDOL is 0332855 and the ISIN

number 1s GBO003328555

COMPANY INFORMATION

The Company was launched on 15 March 1994 with one wamant
attached to every five shares The onginal subscnption price was £1
for each ordinary share of 25 pence each On 11 November 2009,
the Company 1ssued subscnption shares on a 1 for 5 basis and the
final date for exerasing these was 28 February 2014 The Company
made another subscnption shares issue to shareholders on 26 August
2014 on a one for five basis The final date for exeraising the nghts
attached to these subscnption shares 1s 29 Apnl 2016

NAV INFORMATION

The Company’s net asset value of the Company 15 calculoted on o
daily basis and released to the London Stock Exchange on a daily

basis

from 28% to 20% and the basic rate from 18% to 10%
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Glossary of Terms

AlF
Alternative Investment Fund The Company 1s an AlF

AlFM
Alternative Investment Fund Manager The Board has appointed

FIL Investment Services {UK) Limited to act os the Company’s
AIFM

AIFMD

The Altemnative Investment Fund Managers Directive 1s a European
Union Directive that came into force on 22 July 2013 The
implementation date was 22 July 2014

CAPITAL GAINS TAX (CGT)
The tax you may have to pay if you sell your shares at a profit

CONTRACT FOR DIFFERENCE (CFD)

A Contract For Difference 1s a denvative It 1s a contract between
the Company and an investment house at the end of which the
parties exchange the difference between the opeming pnce and
the closing price of an underlying asset of the specified financial
mstrument It does not involve the Company buying or selling the
underlying asset, only agreeing to receive ar pay the movement in
its share pnce A Contract For Difference allows the Company to
gain access to the movement in the share pnce by depositing a
small amoum of cash known as margin A Company may reason
that the asset price will nse, by buying (“long” positron) or fall, by
selling ("short” position) f o company trades long, dividends are
receved and interest 1s pard If a company trades short, dividends
are paid and interest 1s receved The Company only uses “long”
Contracts for Difference

CORPORATICN TAX

The tax the Company may have to pay on its profits for a year
As an investment trust company, the Company 1s exempt from
corporation tax on its capital gains and does not pay tax on any
UK dwidends [t can also olfset expenses against any toxable
income and consequently it 1s tax efficient and does not pay
corporation tax

CUSTODIAN

An entity that holds {as intermediary) the Company's assets,
arranges the settlement of transactions and administers income,
proxy voting and corporate actions The Company's custodian 1s
JPMorgan Chase Bank

DEPOSITARY

An entity that oversees the custody, cash arrangements and other
AlFM responsibiities of the Company The Board has appointed
JP Morgan Europe Limited to act as the Company’s depositary

DERIVATIVES

Financial instruments (such as futures, options and Contracts
For Difference} whose volue I1s denved from the value of an
underlying asset
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DISCOUNT

It the share price of the Company 15 lower than the net asset
value per share, the Company's shares are said to be trading at
a discount The discount 1s shown as a percentage of the net
asset value The opposite of a discount I1s a premium It 15 mere
common for an investment trust to trade of a discount than a
premivm

FAIR VALUE
The tair value 1s the best estimote of the value of the investments,
including dervatives, at a pomt in time and this 1s measured as

* bsted investments valued at bid prices, or last market prices,
where available, otherwise at published price quotations,

* Unlsted investments valued using an appropnate valuation
technique 1n the absence of an active market, and

» Contracts for Difference are valued as the difference between
the settlement pnce of the contract and the value of the
underlying shares in the contract (unrealised gains or losses)

GEARING

Geanng descnbes the level of a Company’s borrowing and s
usually expressed as a percentage of shareholders’ funds It can
be through the use of bank loans, bank overdrafts or Contracts
For Difference in order to increase @ Company's exposure to
stocks Geanng s permitted in order to buy or gain exposure to
further investments If assets nse in value, geanng magnifies the
return to ordinary shareholders Correspondingly, if the assets fall
in value, geanng magnifies that fall Contracts For Difference are
used as a way of ganing exposure to the price movements

of shares without buying the underlying shares directly

GEARING PERCENTAGE

In a simple example, it the Company has £100 million of net
assets and £8 million of borrowings (erther via bank leans or long
Contracts For Difference), then the shareholders’ funds are 8%
geared Nomally, the higher the geanng percentage, the more
sensitive the Company's shares will be to the movements up ond
down in the value of the investment portfchio

INVESTMENT MANAGER

FIL Investments International acts as the Company’s Investment
Manager under delegation from FiL Investment Services (UK)
Limited {the AIFM)

HEDGING

A strategy aimed at mimmising or eliminating the nisk or loss
through adverse movements normailly invelving positions in two
ditterent markets, with one offsetting the other The Company
uses denvative instruments for geanng and investment rather
than hedging purposes




LEVERAGE

Any method by which an AIFM increases the exposure of an AlF it
manages whether through borrowing cash or secunties, or
leverage embedded in denvative positions or by any other
means leverage 1s measured in terms of exposure and 1s
expressed as a ratio of net asset value There are two measures
of calevlated leverage

* The Gross Method which does not reduce exposure for
hedging, and

* The Commiment Method which reduces exposure for
hedging

MANAGER

FIL Investment Services (UK) Limited wos appointed as the
Manager in accordance with the Alternative Investment Fund
Managers Directive (AIFMD), and has delegated, inter aha, the
investment management of the Company to the Investment
Manager

NET ASSET VALUE (NAV)

Net asset value 1s sometimes afso described as “shareholders’
funds”, and represents the total value of the Company's assets
less the total value of its liabilties  For valuation purposes it 1s
common to express the net asset value on a per share bosis

NET ASSET VALUE PER ORDINARY SHARE - UNDILUTED
Represents the net asset value divided by the number of ordinary
shares in 1ssue

NET ASSET VALUE PER ORDINARY SHARE - DILUTED
Represents the net asset value per ordinary share - undiluted
adjusted to reflect what the net asset value per share would have
been if all the nghts attached to any subscniption share n 1ssue
hod been exercised A dilution occurs when the exercise pnce

of the subscription share rights Is less than the net asset value per
ordinary share - undiluted

ONGOING CHARGES

Total expenses (excluding finance costs and taxation) incurred
by the Company as a percentage of daily average net asset
values (previously known as the total expense ratio)

PREEMPTION RIGHTS

Sechion 561 of the Companies Act 2006 provides that a company
offening a new rssue of shares must first make an offer of these
shares, on the same or more favourable terms, in proportion o
the nominal value held by existing shareholders At each annual
general meeting, the Board seeks shareholder approval to
disapply pre-emption nght prowisions, up to 5%

PREMIUM

If the share pnce of the Company 1s ligher than the net asset
value per share, the Company's shares are said to be trading

at a premivm The premium 1s shown as a percentage of the net
asset value The opposite of o premium 1s a discount

INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Glossary of Terms

REFERENCE INDEX
Russell Nomura Mid/Small Cap Index (in sterling terms)

REGISTRAR
An entity that manages the Company’s shareholders register The
Company’s registrar is Capita Asset Services

RETURN/(LOSS)
The return/{loss) generated 1n the percd from the investments

* Revenue Return/{Loss) reflects the dividends and interest
from investments and other income net of expenses, finance
costs and taxation,

* Capital Return/(Loss) reflects the return/(loss) on capital,
excluding any revenue return/(loss),

* Total Return/{Loss) reflects the aggregate of revenue and
capital return/(loss) in the penod

SHARE REPURCHASES

An increasingly popular way for investment trust companies to
return cash to their shareholders 1s through offenng to repurchase
a proportion of shares currently held The Company seeks the
permission of shareholders to de so at its Annyal General
Meetings allowing it to repurchase a proportion of therr total
shares (up to 14 99%} in the market at pnces below the prevailing
net asset value per share This process is also used to enhance
the net asset value per share and to reduce the discount to net
asset value

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Shareholders’ funds are also described as “net asset value” and
represent the total value of the Company’s assets less the total
value of its liabilities

TOPIX

Also known as the Tokyo Stock Pnice Index, 1s a
capitahsation-weighted index of afl companies listed on the First
Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange The index 1s supplemented
by the subindices of the 33 industry sectors

TOTAL PORTFOLIO EXPOSURE
The total of fixed asset investments at fair value plus the fair value
of the underlying securiies within the Contracts For Difference

TOTAL RETURN PERFORMANCE

The return on the ordinary share prce or net asset value per
share taking into account the nse and fall of ordinary share pnces
and the dwvidends paid to shareholders Any dividends received
by the shareholder are assumed to have been reinvested in
additional ordinary shares {for share pnce total retym) or the
Company’s assets (for net asset value total return)

TREASURY SHARES

Ordinary shares of the Company that have been repurchased by
the Company and not cancelled but held in Treasury These
shares do not pay dvidends, have no voting nghts and are
excluded from the net asset value per share calculation
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Alternative Investment Fund Manager's Disclosure

In comphance with the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive ("AIFMD"), the Board appointed FIL Investment Services (UK)
Limited {"FISL") (o Fidelity group company) as the Company's Alternative lavestment Fund Manager {"AIFM™”) FISL has deleggted the
portfolic management and company secretanal function to FIL Investments International (ancther Fidelty group company) Detalls of
the Management Agreement can be found in the Directors’ Report on page 23

The table below discloses information required by the Altemative Investment Fund Managers Regulations 2013

Function AIFM Role and Responsibility AIFMD Disclosure

Investment The AIFM provides porticho monagement of assets and investment  Details of the Company’s investment

Management advice in relation to the assets of the Company It has delegated objective, strategy and investment policy,
this function to FIL investments International including hmits, are on pages 11 and 12

The Board remains responsible for setting the investment strategy,
investment policy and investment guidelines and the AIFM operates
within these guidehnes

Risk management The AIFM has o responsibility for sk management for the Company The AIFM has an ongoing process for
which is in additien to the Board's corporate governance identifying, evaluating and maneging the
responsibility for nsk management prncipol nsks foced by the Compony ond
The Company has a Risk Management Process Document which 1s this 1s regularly rewewed by the Board
agreed with the Board and demonstrates that nsk management s 'he Board remains responsible for the
separated functionally and hierarchically from operating units and ~~ Compeny’s system of internal control and
demanstrates iIndependence safeguards The Manager maintains  for réviewing its effectiveness Further details

adequate nsk management systems In order to identify, measure  €an be found in the Strategic Report on
and mondor all nsks at least annually under the AIFMD The pages 12 and 13 and in Note 16 to the
Manager 1s responsible for the implementation of vanous nsk Financial Statements on pages 49 to 53

actvities such as nsk systems, nsk profile, nsk imits and testing

The Board, as part of UK corporate governance, remain responsible
for the identfication of significant nsks and for the ongoing review of
the Company’s nsk management and internal control processes

Valuation of The AIFMD requires the disclosure of the percentage of the AlF's Not Applicable
ilhiquid assets assets which are subject to spectal arrangements ansing from their

iquid nature Further, any new arrangements for managing the

hquidity of the Company must be disclosed

Leverage The Company uses leverage 1o increase s exposure to the The maximum leverage limits are 180
stockmarkets of Japan and currently holds long Contracts For for the Gross Method and 150 for the
Difference to achieve this The AIFM, in consultation with the Board, Commitment Method There has been no
has set maximum levels of leverage that are reasonable It has change to the maximum level of leverage

implemented systems to calculate and momiter compliance against  that the Company may employ durng
these mis and has ensured that the fimits have been complied with the year

at all imes At 31 December 2015, actual leverage was
A defimtion of leverage 15 included in the Glossary of Terms on 117 for both the Gross Method and the
page 61 Commitment Method

Liquidsty The AIFM, 1n consuitation with the Board, maintains a iquidity Ne new arrangements for managing the

management management policy which 1s reviewed and updated, if required, ot iquidity of the Company have been mode
least annually Further details can be found in Note 16 on

page 51

Remunerotion of  The AIFM coperates under the terms of Fidelity's Global The FCA's General Guidance on the AIFM

the AIFM Remuneration Policy Statement This ensures that the AIFM complies Remuneration Code has established that
wath the requirements of the FCA's Remuneration Code {SYSC19A),  the first reporting year wall not commence
the AIFM Remuneration Code (SYSC19B) and the BIPRU unti! after the AIFM’s first full performance
Remuneration Code (SYSC19C) year which 15 30 June 2016 Accordingly,

there 1s no data to disclose in respect of
remuneration of the AIFM for this year

The AIFM's Annual Report 1s available to shareholders on request Please contact the Company Secretary whose address can be found
on page 5%
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